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PRESIDENT’S
REVIEW
POUL-ERIK HØYER – PRESIDENT
cycle, there’s much for BWF to build on, given the developments and
accomplishments of the past cycle, especially the past year.
These include our continued focus on securing badminton’s integrity;
our determination to transform badminton into a “multi-environment”
sport with our investment in a shuttle for outdoors - and our new global
partnership with Infront Sports & Media (2018-2025) – a milestone
which dovetails perfectly with our strategic priorities.

INTRODUCTION

However, before we embrace the future, join me in reviewing 2016
which was marked by some excellent progress throughout the year.

2016 HIGHLIGHTS
RIO 2016 OLYMPIC GAMES
The badminton competition at the Rio 2016 Olympic Games was
a priceless advertisement for our sport across the ten days that
unfolded.
The manner in which sports-crazy Brazilians cheered loudly alongside
passionate Indonesian, Chinese, British, Japanese, Danish, Malaysian
and fans from many other countries at Rio 2016 was an incredible
sight. Watching Indian and Spanish spectators trying to outdo each
other during the women’s singles final was as memorable as the
match itself. The fact that tens of millions of fans tuned in globally to
see these gripping on-court battles was a huge boost for badminton
at the Olympic Games’ first outing in South America.
Moreover, with nine countries sharing the 15 badminton medals in
Rio – our best-ever Olympic medal spread – there is no doubt our
sport has spread its roots beyond the accustomed powerhouses. This
was the seventh Olympic Games in which badminton has featured
and, without doubt, one of the most important in terms of our sport’s
diversity.
The Badminton World Federation – and by extension, badminton –
enjoyed a historic and unforgettable climax to another Olympic cycle
at the much-anticipated Rio 2016 Olympic Games.

It can hardly be coincidence that that we reaped such results in the
same season that we marked the 100th implementation of BWF’s
Shuttle Time schools badminton programme.

In a season during which we made further important strides, both
on and off the courts, the absorbing action and amazing results at
the Olympics were undoubtedly the highlight of 2016. Watched by
hundreds of millions globally as well as passionate fans inside Pavilion
4 on all ten days, the Badminton Competition was a resounding
success and told a significant story about badminton’s development
beyond its traditional heartlands.

In December, we appropriately saluted our Olympic champions with
the inaugural Golden Shuttle Awards presentation, but may I once
again congratulate all Rio 2016 winners, as well as silver and bronze
medallists, for their fine performances. We must also commend the
172 athletes who qualified to compete at Rio 2016, thus contributing
to the wonderful showcase and diversity of badminton.

The badminton competition provided an inspirational platform from
which we have launched our preparations for Tokyo 2020 where
badminton will feature not only in the Olympic Games but also, for the
first time ever, in the Paralympic Games; a moment of unparalleled
achievement for our athletes with impairments.

Throughout the build-up to and during the Rio 2016 Olympic Games,
the BWF enjoyed really great collaboration with the International
Olympic Committee (IOC) and the Rio 2016 Organising Committee
for the Olympic Games (ROCOG). I wish to thank both for their
cooperation in this collective success.

As we survey the evolving landscape of the 2016-2020 Olympic

Badminton has been the winner in all of this.
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INTEGRITY OF BADMINTON
BWF continued to entrench the rights of athletes to compete in ‘clean
and fair sport’ with three key measures:
•

Implementing a tougher Code of Conduct in Relation to Betting,
Wagering and Irregular Match Results.

•

Ensuring a more intelligence-based anti-doping programme
through the signing of an agreement with an Athlete Passport
Management Unit (APMU).

•

Fostering support from players through the introduction of the
BWF Integrity Ambassadors’ programme.

In March, BWF announced a wide range of badminton-related
personnel – players, entourage, event staff, referees and volunteers
included – risk lifetime bans from the sport if they breach BWF’s
upgraded Code of Conduct in Relation to Betting, Wagering and
Irregular Match Results.
Players who have a world ranking are now prohibited from betting on
all badminton matches as are BWF and Continental Confederation
staff and BWF referees. The code has also strengthened our authority
to investigate allegations of betting, match-fixing or other related
corruption. The new code has put our investigative framework, on
illegal betting and manipulation of match results, on parallel with
information-gathering rules under the enhanced BWF Anti-Doping
Regulations (January 2015).
Meanwhile, we recognised the need to tap into cutting-edge scientific
knowledge from experts to better detect biological markers in ABPs
(Athlete Biological Passports) that could indicate possible doping
by athletes. In this regard, BWF has contracted experts at an Athlete
Passport Management Unit (APMU) to review the analysis of players’
ABPs (blood and urine). Such expertise is helping us discover anything
suspicious so we can tailor our testing strategies to keep badminton
clean.
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The third major step undertaken in 2016 was the unveiling of five top
players as the first BWF Integrity Ambassadors to promote clean, fair
and honourable sport.
Denmark’s Christinna Pedersen and Viktor Axelsen, Saina Nehwal
of India and Japan’s women’s doubles pair, Misaki Matsutomo and
Ayaka Takahashi, were presented as Integrity Ambassadors at the
Dubai World Superseries Finals in December. They will support the
BWF’s integrity programme – “i am badminton” – which began in
2015, representing the campaign’s values and serving as role models
through their conduct – both on and off court. More ambassadors will
be progressively introduced in 2017.

WANDA AND INFRONT SPORTS & MEDIA
In September, we announced a new partnership (2018-2025) with
Infront Sports & Media – and its parent company, Wanda – in which,
for the first time ever, BWF will work exclusively with one global partner
for the distribution of both our media rights and sponsorship rights.
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The importance of this venture cannot be over-estimated. It will give
badminton vital new momentum – and at precisely the right time. It
fits in perfectly with one of the key objectives of the BWF Strategic
Plan 2016-2020, that being to boost badminton’s entertainment
profile. We want to engage and excite our fans more and this union
with Infront is a clear step in that direction. Their reputation precedes
them and we look forward to Infront sprinkling their sports-marketing
stardust across the badminton landscape – and helping our sport to
shine even brighter.
Inspired by the outstanding badminton competition at the Rio 2016
Olympic Games, we are focused on replicating globally the popularity
and stardom which badminton enjoys in Asia and parts of Europe.
There is no doubt our sport is ready to scale even greater heights
– and hence this partnership with Infront could not have come at a
better time.
I am pleased to welcome Wanda and Infront to the family of badminton.
We are confident it will be a mutually-beneficial relationship as we at
BWF, as well as our tournament hosts, work with Infront to improve the
delivery of events; capitalise on the growing demand for badminton
globally; and achieve our vision of ‘giving every child a chance to play
for life’.

brushing aside challengers in the BWF World Junior Mixed Team
Championships as they took the Suhandinata Cup back to Beijing. The
Chinese also won four of the five individual titles at the IBERDROLA
BWF World Junior Championships in Bilbao, Spain. Japan prevailed
in women’s doubles.
The 12-stop MetLife BWF World Superseries tour concluded with
the third instalment of the Dubai World Superseries Finals, featuring
another spectacular gala dinner (including the BWF Players of the Year
Awards) ahead of the five-day season finale. This event again reached
exceptional heights as players, corporate partners and guests were
well hosted by the Dubai Sports Council and Falcon and Associates.
As we continue to propel badminton upwards and onwards, we wish
to thank our tournament hosts at all levels, from essential junior and
International Series events through to Grand Prix Gold level, World
Superseries and the BWF Major Events which attract great attention.

SPORTS CREATIVITY AWARD

Regarding 2016, I would like to single out Kunshan for staging a
superb TOTAL BWF Thomas & Uber Cup Finals – as well as the BWF
Annual General Meeting, Member’s Forum and Gala Dinner. We truly
appreciated your wonderful hospitality as we did for each of the 12
cities which hosted our flagship MetLife BWF World Superseries. Your
energetic support and collaboration in raising badminton’s stature
has been much appreciated. Thank you to the Member Associations
who did a fantastic job of show-casing our sport to the world and to
spectators in their respective host cities.

BWF captured the International Category – Corporate Sports
Creativity Award (International Federation of the Year Award) at the
eighth edition of the H.H. Sheikh Mohammed Bin Rashid Al-Maktoum
Creative Sports Award in December. We received the prize at a
ceremony in Dubai in early January.

Additionally, we must thank our corporate partners, without whom we
would not be able to present the high standard of events which fans
enjoy globally. At BWF, we are excited about the future and, hand-inhand with all of you, we look forward to making even greater strides in
the coming year, with our new event structure in place.

BWF was recognised for our innovative voting system which, since
2012, has used an objective and transparent method to determine
voting strength of individual members, rewarding each BWF Member
Association for its engagement in international badminton and for its
contribution to the sport’s development globally.
The system has been referenced by sports governance experts as “an
inspiring case of change” and as a “democratic governance system…
(which) offers an interesting opportunity for sport leaders across the
world to rethink sport democratisation, as they start modernising their
governance standards to get fit for purpose in the 21st century”.
The system was developed by the BWF Council, under the leadership
of Dr. Kang Yong Joong, and has been enhanced by the current BWF
Council under my presidency.
The Creative Sports Award honours outstanding achievements
by local, Arab and international sports leaders, athletes, coaches,
referees and other figures or organisations.

TOURNAMENTS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The past year – 2016 – was a historic and important one for BWF and
our many successes could not have been achieved without the input
and relentless work of many dedicated people and organisations.
I must commend my colleagues in the BWF Council – BWF Deputy
President, Gustavo Salazar Delgado; the chairs of all our committees
and commissions; and other Council members – for their commitment
to badminton’s development in diverse spheres. Thank you all for your
tireless efforts.
May I extend my sincere appreciation to BWF Secretary General,
Thomas Lund, and the BWF staff in Kuala Lumpur also for another
year of diligent work to maintain and improve the high standards for
which BWF and badminton have earned a reputation.
We represent 187 Member Associations and each of them plays a
vital role in promoting our sport globally, from grassroots to elite level.
Thanks to all of you and our Continental Confederations who play
such a key role in developing our sport regionally.

Yet again in 2016, badminton’s top tournaments provided thrilling
entertainment and unforgettable memories. In the absence of the
World Championships, the spotlight shone on the TOTAL BWF
Thomas & Uber Cup Finals which were held in Kunshan, China.

In closing, I wish to acknowledge the crucial support we receive from
corporate partners and friends of badminton worldwide. They have all
shared in our sport’s glorious rise in recent years and their cooperation
has been priceless.

Fans were keen to see if China would rebound from losing the Men’s
World Team Championship – the Thomas Cup in 2014 – and regain
supremacy on home turf. However, it was a gritty Danish squad that
surprised the badminton world to savour Europe’s first glory in this
tournament, bouncing back from 0-2 down against Malaysia in the
semi-finals and grinding out a nail-biting 3-2 victory against Indonesia
in the final.

As we enter a new Olympic cycle and a new era in badminton, I look
forward to forging more collaborative ties within the wonderful family
of badminton.

Meanwhile, China’s women did not falter in retaining the Uber Cup
for a record 14th occasion, beating Korea 3-1 for the Women’s World
Team Championship.
China remained at the pinnacle of junior badminton also, easily

Thank you all.

POUL-ERIK HØYER
BWF PRESIDENT
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Chen Long (CHN) - Olympic Champion - Men’s Singles
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SECRETARY
GENERAL’S
REPORT
THOMAS LUND –
SECRETARY GENERAL

INTRODUCTION
As BWF moved towards the conclusion of another Olympic cycle,
a number of important decisions were taken in 2016 to strengthen
the organisation and ensure it was well positioned for the future and
another phase of growth and development.
During the year, it was recognised that an increase in staff was
necessary to handle badminton’s growth and continued development
from grassroots to elite level across 187 Member Associations.
Additionally, for some time it had been acknowledged that BWF would
need a larger office, having outgrown its current premises in Kuala
Lumpur and that too was addressed.
Work also continued to enhance BWF’s network of digital platforms to
service the audience-specific demands of our global community, with
various bespoke sites being launched throughout the year.
On the commercial front, BWF acted well in advance to determine the
management of our media and sponsorship rights for the long-term
future, with current agreements ending in 2017. In September 2016,
we announced a new partnership with Infront Sports & Media – and
its parent company, Wanda. The net effect of this is that Infront will
assume the roles and responsibilities previously undertaken by ESG
(sponsorship / commercial) and IMG Media (media). While some
of Infront’s role has already started in 2017 - related to sponsorship
servicing for Major Events, the full partnership takes effect from 2018.
Whilst we will continue to work closely together through 2017, we
would like to thank both outgoing partners – ESG and IMG Media – for
their respective contributions to BWF and to badminton’s development
and growth globally.

In tandem with that – and in preparation for the announcement of
tournament hosts for its new event cycle – badminton’s worldgoverning body undertook a major restructuring to improve its
calendar of events. This will in turn result in a more coherent
tournament structure to ensure fans around the world can enjoy even
more top-level badminton featuring our great stars.
On court, all eyes were of course focused on the amazing badminton
competition at the Rio 2016 Olympic Games; a well-executed
tournament which proved a priceless advertisement for our sport at
the highest level.
Countless development initiatives have been launched over the year
in close cooperation with our Continental Confederations. These
continued efforts within our development sphere will hopefully
support an even more progressive growth of our sport and make us
all achieve our vision of “giving every child a chance to play badminton
for life”.

2016 HIGHLIGHTS
PERSONNEL AND STAFF STRUCTURE
In order to continue meeting the demands of our increasing number
of commitments and stakeholders, BWF recruited for the relevant
expertise in key areas while also making some human-resources
changes internally.
Among new staff joining the BWF, there will be a Legal Manager,
Development Manager, Events Officer, Administration Officer and
an Integrity Officer. Recruitment is ongoing for a Digital Marketing
position also.
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Meanwhile, as of the beginning of 2017, para-badminton duties have
been incorporated into the Events Department and Development
Department so that, as we move towards the Tokyo 2020 Paralympic
Games, para-badminton will better benefit from the existing
knowledge and expertise within our events team and will enjoy the full
range of BWF development initiatives, including Shuttle Time, player
development, coach education and training for technical officials.
This decision has slightly changed the departmental structure, so
para-badminton is no longer included in a separate department
(Para-badminton and Integrity Unit), and the Integrity Unit has been
upgraded with more resources and the staff therein are now solely
focused on integrity of sport.
This decision is in keeping with BWF’s policy of developing parabadminton in the same manner as we have badminton; our motto
being ‘One Sport – One Team’.
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NEW BWF HEADQUARTERS
A new location for the BWF Headquarters has been identified and it
is expected that BWF will relocate to the new premises in the second
quarter of 2017.
Given the growth of BWF – our financial resources, our human
resources and the sport in general – it is a welcome improvement
to have an office which can live up to the requirements of BWF’s
operations in years to come.
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DIGITAL PLATFORMS

MEETINGS

BWF continued the expansion of its digital landscape during 2016
as more audience-specific websites came online to service the
organisation’s diverse clientele. BWF now has a full suite of websites
to showcase all the great achievements throughout the world of
badminton.

The BWF Secretariat again provided day-to-day servicing of the BWF
Council, Executive Board and the committees and commissions. BWF
staff also planned and prepared for the 2016 Annual General Meeting
and Member’s Forum. Last year, those key sessions were held in
Kunshan, China, in conjunction with the TOTAL BWF Thomas & Uber
Cup Finals.

The Rio 2016 Olympic Games website (http://olympics.bwfbadminton.
com) provided up-to-date reports, photos, scores from the memorable
event in Brazil as well as flashbacks to previous Olympic badminton
competitions.
Other websites which made their debuts in 2016 were:
Education Site (www.bwfeducation.com): This caters to stakeholders
such as players (and entourage), coaches, coach educators/tutors,
technical officials and classifiers. It is a gateway to courses and
training programmes. Coaches can download education materials
(manuals and instructional videos) for free and register for updates.
Shuttle Time Site (www.bwfshuttletime.com): This is the home of
Shuttle Time Schools Badminton that provides extensive material
for schools, teachers, tutors, trainers, and members implementing
Shuttle Time programmes.
The launch of this website was accompanied by the introduction
of a Shuttle Time app to further boost the grassroots programme’s
availability to teachers, tutors and children globally.
BWF Sudirman Cup Site (http://bwfsudirmancup.com): A
comprehensive presentation of the World Mixed Team Championships
for the TOTAL BWF Sudirman Cup – its history, past winners, eventspecific news, and information on this year’s championships in Gold
Coast (Australia), including online booking of tickets.

The BWF Council met three times in 2016:
•

21-26 May - Kunshan, China

•

10 August - Rio, Brazil

•

1-5 November - Bilbao, Spain

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The BWF’s steady progress and continued success is just reward for
the hard work and combined efforts of many people throughout the
business of badminton.
At the helm, we have been led by our BWF Council, with various
members chairing committees and commissions. Thank you all for
your sound vision and leadership in this important year.
Our many accomplishments during 2016 could not have been achieved
without the talented, experienced and committed management and
staff we have at BWF Headquarters in Malaysia. Thank you to all my
colleagues in various departments for the great unity and team spirit
which you have all shown to the benefit of our membership, players
and other stakeholders. Your dedication and service to our sport has
stood out once more to ensure badminton shines brilliantly on the
global stage.

BWF World Championships Site (http://bwfworldchampionships.
com): This offers a journey into the history of the BWF World
Championships; information on past winners and scores; news on
recent championships, and useful information on the next TOTAL
BWF World Championships in Glasgow, Scotland. Fans can also book
tournament tickets on this site.

Appreciation also goes to our Member Associations, Continental
Confederations, corporate partners, tournament hosts and all others
who worked tirelessly alongside us in this Olympic year for the
betterment of our sport.

These portals joined the fan site (www.bwfbadminton.com); the
corporate website (www.bwfcorporate.com); and the BWF World
Superseries site (www.bwfworldsuperseries.com) which was
launched in October 2014.

THOMAS LUND
SECRETARY GENERAL

The BWF also has a Chinese fan site (www.bwfbadminton.cn) catering
to badminton’s Mandarin-speaking audience globally.

Thank you.

BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Carolina Marin (ESP) - Olympic Champion - Women’s Singles

11

BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2016

12

CAPACITY BUILDING
- MORE & BETTER
badminton rules - and applying these rules fairly and consistently.
•

Programmes – planning and implementing badminton
pogrammes – grass roots programmes like Shuttle Time, coach
education, player development, competitions and tournaments.

How we build and develop these areas over time relates to what we
are calling “capacity building”.
CAPACITY is one of the four Strategic Priorities in the BWF Strategic
Plan 2016 – 2020. “Capacity” in this sense, is about the ability of an
organisation to govern, manage, regulate and grow our sport.

It is the goal of the BWF to support the growth and development
of badminton globally, and this includes the development of the
organisation that govern, regulate, promote and develop the sport – in
other words BWF itself as an organisation, its members and the five
Continental Confederations.
The BWF membership is diverse. There are BWF members who
have a large player base, are very well resourced national badminton
associations with professional staff and have well-established
badminton programmes that produce world class players and world
class events.
There are other national associations who are wholly volunteer –
have no paid staff, have a small player base and are just starting to
implement programmes like Shuttle Time as a way of initiating grass
roots programmes.
The voting strength of each BWF member is a snapshot of our
membership globally. The assessment criteria applied across a four
year period includes these elements:

Capacity is about our ability and performance in such areas as:
•

Governance and leadership – the board and leadership group.

•

Management – day to day management of the organisation and
its badminton programmes.

•

Assets / Infrastructure – what physical assets the organisation
has – office, badminton venue or badminton courts, events owned
by the association in which income made through such things as
commercial and media rights.

•

Financial resources – the funding the organisation has available
annually to run the organisation and plan and deliver programmes.

•

Human resources – the people in the organisation – and the
badminton workforce beyond the office – coaches, technical
officials, event organisers. Having the right people in the right
positions.

•

Rules and Regulations – having a good set of rules – the
constitution (governance rules), management guidelines and

•

Membership of the BWF = 1 vote

•

Player base (more than 10,000 for each of the four years of the
assessment period) = 1 additional vote

•

Participation in international events – 7 out of 12 world /
continental events = 1 additional vote

•

Olympic Games qualification – at least one player qualified for
Rio = 1 additional vote

•

World Ranking 40 – having at least player in the top 40 of world
ranking = 1 additional vote

•

Hosting International events – Superseries / Grand Prix /
International Challenge = 1 additional vote

The current membership of voting members is 181 (as at 15 March
2017) and the voting strength is as below:
VOTES

MEMBERS

PERCENTAGE OF
MEMBERS

1 vote

132 members

73%

2 votes

12 members

6.6%

3 votes

6 members

3.3%

4 votes

13 members

7.1%

5 votes

18 members

10%

Note – Assessment Period – 1 October 2012 – 30 September 2016
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This is only one very broad indicator of the membership. Others might
be:
•

More than 100 members are implementing Shuttle Time

•

47 members qualified players for the Rio Olympic Games

•

Nine countries win medals at the Rio Olympic Games badminton
competition – the best medal spread to date.

•

31 members have an annual turnover of more than US$ 250,000.

MORE / BETTER
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GOALS (STRATEGIC PLAN 2016 – 2020)
•

To strengthen and enable organisational capacity of the BWF and
Continental Confederations to support strategic implementation.
[Strategic Priority - Key Results Area 3 – Development & Sports
for All]

•

To support the delivery of structured development programmes,
projects and activities that develop individual potential in our
sport and build systems, structures and pathways from beginner
to world class. [Key Results Area 3 – Development & Sports for All]

•

To build the capacity of the Continental Confederations and BWF
members to better manage, administer, regulate and develop
badminton regionally / nationally. [Strategic Plan - Key Results
Area 3 – Development & Sports for All]

Organisational development and capacity building of BWF members
is fundamental to strengthening the growth of badminton nationally.
In its simplest form – this is about MORE and BETTER. For example –
if we take the people as a key element of an organization:

BWF has implemented a number of key strategies in partnership with
the Continental Confederations:

•

MORE people in the system, building the workforce with the
right people in the right positions – whether they be paid staff or
volunteers.

1. Conducting a membership survey every four years to gathers
information and to categorize our membership so that the
Continental Confederation and the BWF can offer more targeted
and funded training and development programmes to meet needs.

•

BETTER people in the system – growth and the professional
development of people in the system / members of the workforce
through training, coaching mentoring and experience over time.

2. Developing training and education courses and materials to
help build the capacity of administrators and event organisers
including:

Capacity building is also about the developing the systems and
structures in which the workforce works day to day.

•

Administrators Course

BWF, its members and Continental Confederations must work towards
building stronger and better badminton organisations – at both the
governance and management levels.

•

Events Organisers Course

•

Player Pathways Course

Organisational capacity is central to achieving progress in the sport
towards 2020 and beyond. Capacity is an “enabler” for sustainable
growth and development of badminton globally.

BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2016

14

PARTNERSHIPS
- ONE SPORT / ONE TEAM

PARTNERSHIPS is one of the four Strategic Priorities in the BWF
Strategic Plan 2016 – 2020 and BWF has a wide range of partners
sharing in its activities. Members and Continental Confederations are
two key partners in our “badminton family”.
These three – BWF, Continental Confederations and Members work
towards common goals for the development of badminton globally.

BWF’s partners include such groups as:
•

BWF Members and the five Continental Confederations.

•

Events Host - for BWF Major Events, BWF World Superseries and
Gold Grand Prix events.

•

Commercial Partners – and media rights partners and broadcast
partners.

•

Development Partners – such as Olympic Solidarity / United
Nations Office for Sport Development and Peace (UNOSDP),
Special Olympics International, The Association for International
Sport for All (TAFISA), International School Sports Federation, and
so on.

•

Institutional Sports World – other International Sports
Federations, major event owners and multi-sport games owners.

•

The International Olympic Committee (IOC) and the International
Paralympic Committee (IPC).

STRATEGIC GOAL
In the Strategic Plan 2016 – 2020, the strategic goal for the key pillar
of “partnerships” is as follows:
•

Partnerships are critical to the success of sport and these come in
many forms.
Partnerships could be with funding bodies such as governments,
private enterprise, commercial and media partners or partners that
fulfil particular sport objectives such as your membership or schools
badminton development partner.

To engage with key partners to achieve shared goals and to
strengthen BWF’s status as a responsible and proactive institution.

BWF aims to develop and enhance strategic partnerships to support
the achievement of its strategic goals over the next four years. The
key focus for this strategic goal is the partnerships with the IOC and
the IPC.
As the IF for an Olympic and Paralympic sport, BWF has a responsibility,
together with its membership, to ensure competition structures and
pathways are in place and these athlete pathways lead to the pinnacle
events for badminton – the Olympic Games and Paralympic Games.
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The partnerships BWF has with its membership and their national
player performance programmes for athletes are central to the quality
outcomes for badminton at each Olympic and Paralympic Games.

Strategies include aligning high level goals with the IOC and IPC and
the continuing compliance with the principles of the Olympic Charter
and the various codes guiding Olympic and Paralympic movements.

The BWF membership at a national level is our key partner in
developing the systems, structures and pathways to support athletes
for international level competition and world class performances.

•

Other strategic partnerships in the institutional sports world are also
important in achieving world class performances in the sport and
these include partnerships with multi-sport owners such as the Asian
Games, Asian Para-Games, the Pan American Games, the Para-Pan
Games, the Commonwealth Games, and FISU Summer Universiade.

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
There are two key strategic priorities for this area:
•

To continue to improve BWF’s position and value as a core sport
within the Olympic programme and a sport in the Paralympic
programme. [Key Results Area 2]

To build effective relations with the IOC, IPC and the institutional
sports world and enhance BWF’s representation and image
as a Summer Olympic Games and Paralympic Games IF and
promote badminton’s and BWF’s position within the Olympic
family, in particular the IOC, ASOIF, NOCs – the IPC and National
Paralympic Committees and international sports organisations
for the disabled. [Key Results Area 2].

•
Active participation in all meetings and programmes of ASOIF, IOC
and IPC together with its representative bodies – NOCs, NPCs and
sports organisations for people with an impairment or disability.
BWF’s active representation and membership on working groups
and commissions in these institutional partners is a central strategy
to enhance knowledge sharing and knowledge transfer and the
enhancement of effective working relationships between BWF and
these organisations.
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ATHLETE
FOCUSED
- CLEAN SPORT / FAIR PLAY

We all have a responsibility – to protect our sport and to protect the
right of all athletes to compete in clean and fair competitions – in
other words - sport without doping and competitions that are free
from manipulation.

The BWF Strategic Plan 2016 – 2020 has four pillars or strategic
priorities – 1) Entertainment, 2) Participation, 3) Partnerships and
4) Capacity.

Clean and fair sport is a right. Doping, match fixing, illegal betting and
corruption are threats to the integrity of sport and all those involved in
sport. These threats risk the future of sport. Everyday we need to work
on protecting the integrity of badminton and a large part of that focus
is educating players to make the right choices.

At the centre of these four pillars are athletes who are the most
important “actors” in our sport. Every week, athletes inspire hundreds
of millions of badminton fans worldwide with their performances
on court. We need to continue to keep athletes in mind when we are
making decisions on our sport.
There are four focuses for athletes in the strategic plan and four goals
related to these areas.
1. CLEAN SPORT
To protect the rights of clean athletes.
2. FAIR PLAY
To ensure competitions are free from manipulation and corruption.
3. AWARENESS AND EDUCATION
To ensure athletes are educated so they make informed choices.
4. HEALTH AND WELL-BEING
To protect and promote athletes health and safety during training and
competition.
BWF and its members must play an active role in providing the best
possible environments for athletes to realise their potential and to
ensure they understand their obligations around ant-doping and antimatch fixing.
Athletes have responsibilities to ensure they - and badminton - remain
“clean” and “honest” – free from doping and any kind of manipulation
of competitions.

BWF’s Integrity Unit, which was set up in late 2014, focuses on key
areas of sport integrity through the anti-doping and anti-match fixing
programmes.
These programmes focus on:
•

A great deal of media coverage took place in the last two years on the
integrity of sport and not much of that was positive media stories.

Education and Awareness – players and the entourage (coaches,
team managers).

•

The credibility of the governance of sport and the credibility of
competitions are major focuses for the IOC’s Agenda 2020, and this
has implications for all of us in the Olympic Movement.

Monitoring – of betting in badminton. Monitoring athletes
through the anti-doping testing programme and monitoring
betting patterns on badminton matches.

•

Investigations - of alleged doping, betting, match-fixing and other
forms of corrupt behaviour in badminton.
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Since March 2016, BWF has:
1. Banned all betting on badminton by players, BWF technical
officials, BWF and Continental Confederation staff and anyone at
badminton competitions.
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As part of the communication strategy the BWF has appointed “i am
badminton” campaign ambassadors. To date the BWF has announced
these players as Integrity Ambassadors:
•

Chen Long (CHN) - Olympic Champion - Rio 2016

•

Misaki Matsutomo (JPN) - Olympic Champion - Rio 2016

•

Saina Nehwal (IND) – (IND) – Bronze Medalist – London 2012
Olympic Games

•

4. Partnered with National Anti-Doping Organisations on educational
initiatives.

Richard Perot (FRA) – Chair – Para-Badminton Athletes’
Commission

•

5. Launched an Integrity Awareness Campaign and Integrity
Ambassadors.

Christinna Pedersen (DEN) – Silver Medallist – Rio 2016 Olympic
Games

•

Hendra Setiawan (INA) – Olympic Champion – Beijing 2008

•

Ayaka Takahashi (JPN) – Olympic Champion - Rio 2016

•

Yuhan Tan (BEL) – Olympian - Chair – Athletes’ Commission

2. Enhanced the rules to give the BWF greater powers to investigate
and prosecute.
3. Worked with Continental Confederations and Members to
plan and deliver in-venue awareness activities with players and
coaches.

6. Engaged expertise to assist BWF in developing its capacity around
anti-doping and anti-match fixing.
7. Engaged a professional investigator to monitor and investigate
allegations of betting and the manipulation of match play.

INTEGRITY AWARENESS CAMPAIGN
‘i am badminton’ is BWF’s global integrity campaign which was
unveiled at the 2015 BWF World Junior Championships.
“i am badminton” is about players, coaches, technical officials and
administrators working together to protect our sport from threats like
doping, match fixing, illegal betting and corruption.
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RIO 2016 OLYMPIC
GAMES REVIEW
RIVETING, RECORD-SETTING RIO!

Badminton captured the hearts of Brazilians during the Rio 2016
Olympic Games.
The first few days of competition, when local players Ygor de Coelho
Oliveira and Lohaynny Vicente displayed their skills, they were a sight
to behold. An electric atmosphere engulfed Riocentro - Pavilion 4,
rivalling any venue in badminton’s heartlands – with the crowd roaring
its approval of its home-grown heroes. The ripples of Oliveira and
Vicente’s performances will long be felt and augur well for badminton’s
future in the host nation.
Apart from local supporters, there were of course many fans from
around the world, cheering their respective players – and enjoying the
Olympic spectacle on the whole. They, and the tens of millions who
tuned in globally, were rewarded with badminton of the highest quality
and will surely remember the epic event for years to come.
As curtains fell on the tenth and final day of the badminton competition
in Rio, it was evident this had been an Olympics like no other. Old
barriers were blown away; records shattered; new stars had risen to
the fore.
The honours roll bore the names of nine countries – unprecedented
in Olympic badminton.
Japan savoured their first-ever gold medal, thanks to the women’s
doubles pair of Misaki Matsutomo and Ayaka Takahashi. Europe
heralded their first-ever woman champion – Carolina Marin of Spain.
India too celebrated their best-ever result – a silver medal dangling
from Pusarla V Sindhu’s neck. Malaysia, beating all pre-tournament
predictions, finished with three silvers. Great Britain also reached the
podium in men’s doubles; Marcus Ellis and Chris Langridge seizing
bronze.
The fact that no country won more than one medal in any category
reflected how open and competitive badminton has become. China,
having won all five gold medals in London 2012, had to be content
with two this time. The fact that China did not medal in either of the
women’s categories was hugely significant and pointed to the winds
of change in these categories – two events that China has been
traditionally strong in. This showed that other nations have increased
their competitiveness at Olympic level.

There was massive anticipation around the men’s singles semi-final
between Malaysia’s Lee Chong Wei and China’s Lin Dan. The Malaysian
has been thwarted in most major events by his great Chinese rival, but
this time Lee held his nerve in a dramatic finish to give himself a third
shot at an Olympic gold. However, he was once again frustrated in
his bid by a Chinese player – Chen Long, winner of the last two World
Championships. Denmark’s Viktor Axelsen won the bronze medal
play-off against Lin Dan.
Marin was in red-hot form and blazed into the women’s singles final.
Her opponent, India’s Pusarla V Sindhu, was her equal in aggression
as she stole the first game, but Marin held steady and coasted through
in the end, sealing a historic moment in Spanish sport.
Fu Haifeng and Zhang Nan showed enormous reserves of calm to
navigate past three match points in their men’s doubles quarter-final
bout against Korea’s Kim Gi Jung/Kim Sa Rang, and two match points
against Malaysia’s Goh V Shem/Tan Wee Kiong in the final. It was the
second Olympic gold for Fu and Zhang; Fu winning the same event
with Cai Yun in 2012 while Zhang conquered mixed doubles with Zhao
Yunlei in London.
Misaki Matsutomo and Ayaka Takahashi ‘stole’ the Olympic women’s
doubles final from the grasp of Denmark’s Christinna Pedersen/
Kamilla Rytter Juhl, who had a 19-16 lead at the death. In contrast,
the mixed doubles final was a straightforward result for Indonesia’s
Tontowi Ahmad/Liliyana Natsir over Malaysia’s Chan Peng Soon/Goh
Liu Ying.
The drama of Rio 2016 wasn’t limited to the medal matches. There
were other heroic performances: Ukraine’s Maria Ulitina’s upset of
India’s Saina Nehwal and Ireland’s Scott Evans’ defeat of Germany’s
Marc Zwiebler stood out. Poland’s 40-year-old Robert Mateusiak
proved age is just a number as he and mixed doubles partner
Nadiezda Zieba beat medal contenders Xu Chen/Ma Jin (China) and
Chris Adcock/Gabrielle Adcock (Great Britain) to reach the quarterfinals. There were also brave performances by less-heralded players
like Mexico’s Lino Munoz, Cuba’s Osleni Guerrero, USA’s Iris Wang,
Bulgaria’s Linda Zetchiri and the Dutch duo of Eefje Muskens and
Selena Piek.
Near-flawless on-court presentations; flag and banner-waving
spectators from all over the world; and a brilliant orange design on the
field of play enhanced the festive environment.
Badminton has been rising on many levels in recent years and, without
a doubt, Rio 2016 sent the sport soaring even higher.
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RIO 2016
LEGACY PROJECT
DESCUBRA O BADMINTON

When Brazil was announced as the host of the Rio Olympic Games, the
BWF saw this as a really important opportunity for the development of
badminton in the region.

A branded marketing campaign called “Descubra O Badminton” – or
“discover badminton” - was launched in 2014 with a whole range of
marketing tools such as branded tee shirts, wristbands, gift items like
mouse pads, backdrops for public events, portable court mats and
even a mascot. The “discover badminton” branding was used on all
elements of the programme including the Facebook page, Instagram
as well as any of the infrastructure at events.

PROJECT ACTIVITIES / OUTCOMES

BWF established a Rio Legacy Working Group in 2013 to define a
project that would ensure a legacy from hosting the first Olympic
Games in the region.

GRASSROOTS DEVELOPMENT – SHUTTLE
TIME SCHOOLS BADMINTON

The project aimed to increase the awareness of badminton as an
Olympic sport through a range of strategies implemented in Rio and
across Brazil. The project aimed to:

Working with the Rio Badminton Federation and Badminton Brazil
(CBBd), the BWF organised and funded 25 Shuttle Time courses and
provided equipment to schools.

•

Increase awareness of badminton through media engagement.

•

Promote badminton as a sport for all through public activations.

•

Increase participation in badminton through grass roots projects
such as Shuttle Time Schools Badminton and Coach Education
programmes.

•

Ensure a legacy – beyond Rio 2016 – sustainable development.

Over a two year period from July 2014 to September 2016, the BWF
made a significant investment in the Rio Legacy Project. A Rio Project
Manager, Maria van Grichen, was recruited in mid 2014 and BWF had
by then, already engaged a marketing and media agency to ensure an
effective communications and media strategy around badminton to
increase awareness of our sport in Brazil.

•

Shuttle Time courses were delivered all over the State of Rio to
private and public schools.

Over two years, the project delivered some really great outcomes for
the sport around four key pillars:

•

Within a two year period, the number of students participating in
Regional School Tournaments doubled by June 2016 – from 9 Rio
schools participating in 2015 to 19 schools participating in 2016.

•

Development - Using Shuttle Time as the key tool to increase
participation of youth in the sport.

•

It was estimated that 80,000 children participated in badminton
for the first time at school in Rio de Janeiro State.

•

Tournaments - Using tournaments to develop local skills and
knowledge and to promote the sport locally and nationally.

•

•

Experiences - Planning and delivering activities that engaged the
public and create awareness and a media buzz around badminton.

The courses delivered attracted media interest especially in the
local area where the courses were taking place. Images from all
courses were published through social media.

•

Rio 2016 – Making links between the Olympic Games and the
project.

Any activity undertaken in these areas had a central question – how
could we engage media and maximize the exposure of badminton
beyond the activity itself?

PUBLIC ACTIVATIONS AND PARTNERS
The project planned and delivered a wide range of activations – some
stand-alone and some initiated by the small team working with the
Project Manager and others with partner organisations such as
the NOC, organisers of the Rio Tennis Open or major public event
organisers.
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RIO 2016 SPORT EXPERIENCE PROGRAMME

NUMBER / TYPE OF ACTIVATIONS & PARTNERS
TYPE OF ACTIVITIES
BADMINTON IN THE STREETS

2014

2015

2016

TOTAL

9

4

1

14

COB – BRAZIL OLYMPIC COMMITTEE

6

3

9

GLOBO TV RIO 2016 RELATED ACTIVITIES

6

4

10

During the Games in Riocentro, badminton together with three other
sports had an area which was used to provide sport experiences for
spectators who were at Riocentro to watch Olympic sports.
This was a public engagement activity area for badminton in the
Riocentro Common Domain which was managed by five volunteers
from the Rio Badminton Association. This ran for 15 days during the
badminton competitions. The “try-out” zone for badminton included
two court mats for spectators to try the sport and a target for people
to serve shuttles into.

RIO OPEN TENNIS MEDIA EVENTS

1

2

3

SHOPPING CENTRE ACTIVATIONS

1

3

4

11

6

18

12

6

18

BADMINTON SPORTS EXPERIENCE - RIO 2016

1

1

TOTAL E-MAILS COLLECTED

26

77

SPORTS EXPERIENCE OPERATING DAYS

15

AVERAGE PEOPLE/ DAY

297

TRANSFORMA – RIO 2016 LEGACY PROGRAMME

1

OTHER – MEDIA TRAINING / AWARENESS
SPORT EXPERIENCE AT GAMES
TOTAL

10

41

All these activations had two primary objectives –
1. To engage people in the sport and get them to experience
badminton – very often for the first time.
2. To engage media and get coverage for badminton on television,
print and social media.
Educating media was a key objective and some of the activities
involved briefing media about the sport and then getting them to try
out badminton to get a feel for the game.
MEDIA PLATFORMS
Social media played an important role in communicating to a
wide audience about badminton – so the “Descubra O Badminton”
Facebook page and Instagram aimed to build an audience that was
connected to the developing badminton community. In September
2016 the figures were as below.
•

Facebook - “Descubra O Badminton” – 32,000 people liked this

•

Instagram - “Descubra O Badminton” – 6000 followers

2,004

TOTAL PEOPLE

4,455

FEMALE - 39%

1,737

MALE - 61%

2,718

RIO 2016 BADMINTON PROGRAMME FOR SCHOOLS
BWF purchased more than 600 badminton session tickets for school
children from schools that taken part in the Shuttle Time programmes.
This was a once-in-a-lifetime opportunity to see world class badminton
and to cheer on the Brazilian players in the competition.
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EVENTS
PETER TARCALA - CHAIR

EVENTS COMMITTEE

•

Working with BWF’s partners, including event hosts, sponsors
and commercial and media partners to fulfill a wide range of
tournament related host, commercial and media agreements, the
aim of which is to deliver world class tournaments and grow the
fanbase for the sport even further from the current 450 million
strong global audience.

•

Coordinating of technical officials appointed to international
competition and their training and education.

•

Partnering in the delivery, along with the organising committees, of
the badminton competition at the Olympic Games and supporting
of many other multi-sport games and Continental Confederation
competitions.

HIGHLIGHTS 2016
•

•

Stunning Rio 2016 Olympic Games badminton competition with
the first ever gold medals won by Spain and Japan and the biggest
ever global television audience for badminton.
Historic TOTAL BWF Thomas & Uber Cup Finals in Kunshan, China,
with a first ever win for Denmark (and Europe) in the Thomas Cup
and a record 14th victory for China in the Uber Cup.

•

Vibrant MetLife BWF World Superseries season including an
excellent finale – the Dubai World Superseries Finals.

•

Record entry in the IDEROBOLA BWF World Junior Championships
in Bilbao, Spain, with 52 Member Associations taking part in
the team competition and 60 represented in the individual
championships.

•

Review of General Competition Regulations and first steps in
creating a semi-professional technical officials workforce with
the development of recruitment timeline and appraisal process.

COMMITTEE SCOPE OF WORK
•

The Events Committee has a key part to play within BWF regarding
regulating and promoting the sport at an international level. This
includes:
--

Sanctioning of international competitions and effective
management of the international badminton calendar.

--

Regular reviews and implementation of the laws and
competition regulations to make sure they are accurate and
fit for purpose in a fast changing and commercially growing
international sport.

--

Showcasing of the sport through major event delivery including
World Championships, Thomas & Uber Cups, Sudirman Cup
and World Junior and World Senior Championships.

2016 IN REVIEW
An extraordinary year for the Events Committee with effective
delivery of events through strong partnerships with local organizing
committees.

RIO 2016 OLYMPIC GAMES
BADMINTON COMPETITION
11 – 20 AUGUST 2016
Central to everyone’s memories of badminton in 2016 will be the
remarkable Rio 2016 Olympic Games. After winning all five gold
medals in London in 2012 the dominance of China was seriously
challenged by some superb badminton from a wide range of Member
Associations including, Denmark, Spain, India, Japan, Indonesia and
Malaysia, making for an unpredictable and compelling competition.
China still once again topped the medal table with two gold medals,
Chen Long’s epic victory over Lee Chong Wei in Men’s singles which
proved to be the most watched event on television in China from the
whole Games, and Zhang Nan and Fu Haifeng’s gritty victory in men’s
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doubles was a testimony to their experience, determination and skill
as they came through match points against them in the quarter-finals
and final.
Indonesia claimed victory in mixed doubles, Tontowi Ahmad
partnering three time World Champion Liliyana Natsir to victory.
Liliyana proving that she truly is one of the greatest mixed doubles
players in the history of the game. And there were two Olympic
firsts for Badminton– Spain’s first ever gold medal via double world
champion Carolina Marin’s victory in women’s singles over India’s new
darling Pursala V. Sindhu and a first Olympic badminton win for Japan
through the Women’s doubles pair of Misaki Matsutomo and Ayaka
Takahashi.
For the first time nine different nations won Olympic medals in
badminton at one Games including three silver medals for Malaysia.
Lee Chong Wei’s contribution to another stunning men’s singles
final can never be forgotten but he unfortunately came up just short
against Chen Long this time having beaten his old nemesis Lin Dan in
the semi-final.
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There were numerous challenges to be overcome in the delivery of the
badminton competition as a result of the host’s financial constraints
in the run up to the Games but the badminton competition enjoyed
good spectator audiences despite being in a developing badminton
nation and was memorably presented in its orange and green livery.
The television audience for badminton was the highest there has ever
been, and included seven out of the top 10 most watched events from
the Games in China and also the highest watched event in India – the
Pursala V. Sindhu final against Carolina Marin.
There were some new innovations for badminton with the first
‘moving heads’ player profile graphics, the first use of ‘in venue radio’
for spectators and the first ever use of a ‘tower cam’ in the television
production. The draw for the competition was conducted smoothly
as was the first ever draw for the knock out stages, successfully
introduced to avoid the problems encountered in London in the
women’s doubles.
See the Rio 2016 report on page 18 for more on the Rio Olympic
Games.
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TOTAL BWF THOMAS & UBER CUP FINALS
15 – 22 MAY 2016 – KUNSHAN, CHINA

BWF WORLD JUNIOR CHAMPIONSHIPS 2016
2 – 13 NOVEMBER 2016 – BILBAO, SPAIN

Aside from the Olympic Games there was a historic TOTAL BWF
Thomas and Uber Cup Finals in Kunshan, China with a first ever win
for Denmark in the Thomas Cup. China retained the Uber Cup and
set a new record for most wins in either Thomas or Uber Cup with 14
(going past Indonesia’s record of 13 Thomas Cup wins).

The IBERDROLA BWF World Junior Championships for the
Suhandinata Cup (team event) and the Eye-Level Cups took place in
Bilbao, Spain, from 2-13 November 2016, the tournament returning to
Europe after a gap of 20 years.
A record 52 Member Associations representing all five Continental
Confederations entered the Suhandinata Cup, a significant increase
on the 40 teams who participated in Peru in 2015. Another record
of 60 Member Associations were represented in the individual
championships.

The Finals enjoyed vibrant crowds, despite the small venue capacity,
who particularly enjoyed a dramatic semi-final between Denmark
and Malaysia which saw Denmark battle back to win from 2-0 down.
There is no doubt, as also shown in Delhi in 2014, that the 16 team
competition brings a more dynamic and unpredictable edge than the
previous 12 team format.
For 2016 there was a new ‘hybrid system’ of qualification with
teams qualifying through places from both continental qualification
tournaments and the world rankings system.
The Finals were very well organised and competently delivered
by the hosts and there was a successful implementation of BWF’s
commercial model which included new BWF title sponsor energy
giant TOTAL and BWF partners; equipment sponsors Li-Ning, Red Bull
and Chery Car.
The Championships fulfilled the BWF strategic objectives of
showcasing and promoting badminton to an ever increasing
worldwide television audience. The television production in particular
featured excellent use of an ultra-motion camera and use of a jimmy
jib camera for the Finals.

BWF invested once again in junior international badminton supporting
participation at the Championships by making available grants
totaling US$155,000 to 37 teams travelling to the tournament.
A two day development coaching clinic was organised by BWF for
players who were available to participate after the second round
onwards of the individual events. Former Olympic and World
Champion Tony Gunawan (USA) and international coaches Tan Kin
Her (MAS) and Wu Yunyong (CHN) assisted the coaching clinic.
Approximately 50 players from 12 Member Associations took part.
A relay team scoring system experiment was also carried out during
the team championships with players from Scotland, Peru, Mexico,
Iran, Slovakia, Chinese Taipei, Sri Lanka, Belarus and Bulgaria taking
part in the experiment along with BWF technical officials.

Strong features of the Thomas & Uber Cup Finals 2016 included:

A cultural education programme was organised for the players and
officials which took place on 7th November 2016. The cultural tour
was held near RIA de BILBAO maritime museum and covered the
following areas:

•

New hybrid qualification system for the first time with teams
qualifying from Continental Championships men’s and women’s
team tournaments and also the world rankings.

•

Sea / River tour - A 60 minutes sea trip tour which covered central
Bilbao

•

Filmed and available to broadcasters in 16:9 HD.

•

River Sports – Kayak, Paddle sup are arranged

•

Good quality television production using two kinds of ultra-motion
cameras (from both CCTV and IMG) and jimmy jib camera.

•

Rural Sports- Traditional sports of Soka, Tira, Harrijasotzaile

•

Basque Dances

•

Use of Hawkeye tracking system to deliver statistics and smash
speeds (both for broadcast and the latter also shared with
stadium audience via TV monitors next to Court 1).

•

Basque Music

•

Photo Booth Selfie

•

Professional Sport Presentation Team and good use of light
projection and show lighting.

•

Use of Event concept to create look and feel identity.

•

Successful implementation of complex commercial partnerships.

•

Well-presented opening ceremony.

•

Sell-out crowd but in a small venue.

See the separate report on the TOTAL BWF Thomas & Uber Cups
Finals and results on page 30.

There were a number of initiatives for the players to participate and
learn about including:
•

An iZone as part of the “i am badminton” integrity awareness
programme with a signature board, selfie zone with WADA and
BWF questions was arranged for players to participate in.

•

Athlete Career Programme organized by the BWF development
department both in English and Spanish.

•

BWF World Coaching Conference for development coaches
organised with support from Badminton Spain.

•

Shuttle Time Tutor Course organized for Spanish Tutors on 9
November.

•

IOC Athlete Career programme pilot project.
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The semi-finals and finals of the team event and individual
championships were televised live and there was livestreaming from
the first day of the competition.
In team events China dominated the mixed team events and
ultimately won the Suhandinata Cup beating Malaysia in the finals
3-0. In the individual events China won four titles in Women Singles,
men’s doubles, men’s singles and mixed doubles and Japan claimed
the women’s doubles title.
See the BWF World Junior Championships report and results on page
32.

PLAYERS SCHOLARSHIP FUND
A sum of US$36,000 was given away as scholarship awards to the
winners of the Eye- Level Cups. This prize funds was contributed by the
past BWF president Dr. Kang Young Joong under Daekyo Corporation.

METLIFE BWF WORLD SUPERSERIES
The MetLife BWF World Superseries continued to be the main platform
for a huge and growing global badminton audience with the third year
of this cycle successfully completed.
The Dubai World Superseries Finals 2016 provided a tremendous
player experience and top quality badminton completion and television
production. In addition prize money across the 12 tournament Series
totaled US$6,400,000 to which can be added the US$1,000,000 prize
fund for the Finals.
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See the separate report on the Dubai Superseries Finals 2016
including the results on page 34.

BWF INTERNATIONAL CIRCUIT
In the tournament levels below the MetLife BWF World Superseries the
BWF Grand Prix Gold series grew once again, to 14 tournaments and
there were 7 Grand Prix tournaments and 76 level four tournaments.

GCR REVIEW
The Events Committee and Events Department undertook a full review
of the General Competition Regulations (GCR) with a view to creating
a more modern fit for purpose tool for badminton competition.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Peter Tarcala - Chair
Li Lingwei - Deputy Chair
Nora Perry
Geraldine Brown
Ng Yoke Weng
Raj Gaya
Lawrence Chew (until 16 September 2016)
Akhilesh das Gupta
Yuhan Tan
Anton Subowo
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TECHNICAL
OFFICIALS

The Strategic Development Plan for Technical Officials—with its focus
of increased quality and quantity of technical officials, continued to
drive the plans and programming in 2016.

REFEREES UPGRADED TO THE
BWF ACCREDITED LEVEL

Key activities and programmes included the following:

•

Ewald Cejnek (AUT)

•

Zahra Rahmati Haghnejad (IRI)

•

Ivan Skacha (CZE)

•

Enrique Charadan (CUB)

•

Susana Maldonado (POR)

Planning for the semi-professionalization of the referee workforce
to begin in 2018. Work began on the strategy, timeline, criteria,
and evaluation programmes. Umpire programme to start in 2019.

•

Liu Qian (CHN)

•

Shirly Gabay (BRA)

The expansion of the umpire appraisal programme to ensure each
BWF Umpire is appraised at least once every two years.

UMPIRE ASSESSMENT

•

•

•

Content development of educational resources for referees and
umpires at the Level 1 stage, and an overall line judge training
resource. These free resources are to be launched in 2017
and will be available for all of our Members and Continental
Confederations.

There were two training activities centrally organised by the BWF
Technical Officials Commission in 2016:

Umpire Assessors completed appraisals at the following events:
•

Rose Hill International 2016 (MRI)

1. In May, in Kunshan, China, BWF hosted a workshop for the
members of the Umpire Assessment Panel.

•

YONEX All England Open 2016 (ENG)

•

YONEX SUNRISE India Open 2016 (IND)

2. In September, in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, BWF organised
workshops for Accredited and Certificated Referees.

•

OUE Singapore Open 2016 (SGP)

•

XIAMENAIR Australia Open 2016 (AUS)

Key outcomes for 2016:

•

YONEX Open Japan 2016 (JPN)

•

YONEX Denmark Open 2016 (DEN)

•

THAIHOT China Open 2016 (CHN)

•

Dubai World Superseries Finals 2016 (UAE)

REFEREES UPGRADED TO THE
BWF CERTIFICATED LEVEL
Assessment made at the YONEX SUNRISE Indonesia Masters 2016
•

Gretha Prinsloo (RSA)
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UMPIRES UPGRADED TO THE
BWF CERTIFICATE LEVEL
Assessments were made at the TOTAL BWF Thomas & Uber Cup
Finals 2016:

27

•

Cody Leach (USA)

•

Kim Kang Hyun (KOR)

•

Kristian Hedelund (DEN)

TECHNICAL OFFICIALS COMMISSION

•

Christof Osebold (GER)

•

Fabio Betto (ITA)

•

Jiten Bhatt (AUS)

•

Jessen (Setiawan) Mahadoo (MRI)

•

Sudip Barve (IND)

•

Wahyana (INA)

Torsten Berg, who was chair of the Commission for many years
handed over to Gilles Cavert after the May meeting. Torsten continues
as a valued member of the Commission.

•

Liu Yun (CHN)

•

Gilles Cavert - Chair

•

David Wong (MAS)

•

Peter Tarcala - Chair of Events Committee

•

Torsten Berg - Chair of BWF Referee Assessment Panel

UMPIRES UPGRADED TO THE
BWF ACCREDITED LEVEL

•

Jean-Guy Poitras - Chair of BWF Umpire Assessment Panel, &
Badminton Confederation Pan America

•

Peter Cocker, Badminton Oceania

Assessments were made at the MAYBANK Malaysia Open 2016,
YONEX French Open 2016, and THAIHOT China Open 2016:

•

Diraj Gooneadry, Badminton Confederation Africa

•

Jimmy Andersen, Badminton Europe

•

Chris Yip Ting Pong (HKG)

•

Chua Soo Hock, Badminton Asia

•

Mohammed Nazib Ismail (BAN)

•

Kang Sun Young (KOR)

•

Sailesh Kulkarni (IND)

•

Chung Ching Feng (TPE)

•

Brian Kliwon (SUR)

The BWF Technical Officials Commission, met twice in 2016 - in May
in Kunshan, China, alongside the TOTAL BWF Thomas & Uber Cup
Finals 2016, and again, in October in Odense, Denmark, alongside the
YONEX Denmark Open 2016.
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ATHLETES’
COMMISSION
YUHAN TAN - CHAIR

HIGHLIGHTS 2016
•

•

•

•

The Athletes’ Commission held meetings in Tokyo in September
and Dubai in December alongside the Japan Open and Dubai
Superseries Finals respectively.
An Athletes’ Forum was held in Kunshan, China prior to the start
of the TOTAL BWF Thomas and Uber Cup Finals. The forum was
well attended by athletes. Athletes’ Commission activities were
explained and players were able to ask questions directly to BWF
representatives.
Saina Nehwal was appointed a member of the IOC Athletes’
Commission by IOC President Thomas Bach in October 2016.
This is a really important appointment for the sport, and Saina
takes over from Pedro Yang whose term finished in August 2016.
Saina therefore also became an ex-offico member of the BWF
Athletes’ Commission.

To work constructively with the BWF to provide player feedback on
areas of player interest as entrusted to the Athletes Commission
by the BWF.

•

To establish a method of seeking players opinions on issues of
major importance in badminton that aims to reach as wide a
player demographic as possible.

•

To work constructively with the BWF to provide player feedback on
areas of player interest as entrusted to the Athletes Commission
by the BWF.

2016 IN REVIEW
•

Feedback Rio Olympics
--

The Athletes’ Commission Chair became and ambassador of the
‘i am badminton’ integrity campaign and is one of the “faces” of
the campaign to protect the rights of “clean and honest” athletes.

COMMISSION SCOPE OF WORK
•

•

To establish a method of seeking players opinions on issues of
major importance in badminton that aims to reach as wide a
player demographic as possible.

•

The Athletes’ Commission saw the Rio Olympics as a great
success for the sport. The Athletes’ Commission would like to
congratulate everybody involved in the organization of the Rio
Games. The Athletes’ Commission gathered feedback from
players and provided a report which was presented at BWF
Council meeting in Bilbao in November 2016.

General Competition Regulations Updates
--

The Athletes’ Commission was closely involved in discussions
around the General Competition Regulations update. Vice
Chair Koen Ridder travelled to Kuala Lumpur in February and
September to join discussions with BWF events staff.
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•

Feedback about the experimental scoring system
--

The Athletes’ Commission continues to follow up on the
feedback from players around the experimental scoring
system.

•

The BWF Athletes’ Commission was closely involved in
discussions around the new ‘BWF World Tour’ (2018 – 2021).

•

The Athletes’ Commission strongly supports the newly launched
BWF integrity campaign and is looking forward to promoting the
values of the ‘i am badminton’ campaign.

•

During the TOTAL BWF Sudirman Cup Finals in 2017 BWF
Athletes’ Commission elections will take place for three of the
members whose term will expire - Yuhan Tan (BEL), Greysia Polii
(INA), Hans-Kristian Vittinghus (DEN).

•

The AC has looked into the process of election and will now also
allow electronic voting for players who are not present at the
event.
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COMMISSION MEMBERS
Yuhan Tan - Chair
Koen Ridder - Vice-Chair
Shintaro Ikeda
Greysa Polii
Hans-Kristian Vititinghus
Tang Yuanting
Pedro Yang (Ex-officio member until August 2016)
Saina Nehwal (Ex-offico member from October 2016)
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RESULTS 2016
PODIUM FINISHES

TOTAL BWF THOMAS AND
UBER CUP FINALS
KUNSHAN, CHINA 15–22 MAY 2016

But the aftereffects of this tie were felt a day later when China took on
Korea. Son Wan Ho set a blistering pace in his men’s singles opener
against Chen Long, who faded out in the third. Then followed a cracker
of a match between Lee Yong Dae/Yoo Yeon Seong and Zhang Nan/
Fu Haifeng. The Chinese duo had two match points, but the Koreans
defended with the desperation of sinking men, and with some luck
and plenty of pluck, took the contest to a third game. Zhang and Fu,
exhausted by the intensity, had nothing left in the tank.
Lin Dan gave the hosts a fighting chance with his win over Lee Dong
Keun, but China, fielding youngsters Li Junhui/Zheng Siwei, were
soon out of the tournament as they were outwitted by seasoned
campaigners Kim Gi Jung/Kim Sa Rang in the second doubles.
Korea had suddenly shot into reckoning as possible title contenders,
but their euphoria didn’t last long as they ran into Indonesia. Korea’s topranked duo Lee/Yoo looked stiff and ill-at-ease against Mohammad
Ahsan/Hendra Setiawan. Anthony Ginting and Angga Pratama/Ricky
Karanda Suwardi followed up and Indonesia were in the final, with a
chance to reclaim the Thomas Cup that they had last won in 2002.

A MOMENTOUS EVENT FOR EUROPE
– THOMAS CUP REVIEW
Denmark’s victory at the TOTAL BWF Thomas Cup Finals 2016 marked
a historic first for Europe.
The victory was a morale-booster for the country and for Europe,
which had never experienced success at any of the three world team
events: the Thomas Cup, the Uber Cup or the Sudirman Cup. That the
2016 team could do what none of their earlier squads could achieve
– including, at various times, those with greats like Erland Kops, Finn
Kobbero, Morten Frost, Svend Pri and others, would make it all the
more remarkable for the Danes.
Going into the Thomas Cup, Denmark did pack a punch. Strength in
singles and doubles ensured a balance, but the big question was the
impact doubles player Carsten Mogensen’s absence would have on
the team. In the course of the week, Denmark had further problems,
with Jan O Jorgensen and Mads Pieler Kolding having injury niggles,
forcing recombinations in the doubles and requiring Denmark to field
youngster Emil Holst in the semi-final decider against Malaysia. That
neither Holst, nor any of his compatriots, choked under pressure was
testament to the cool-headedness of the Danes.
There were no surprises in the quarter-final line-up. China, Japan
(Group A); Indonesia, Hong Kong (Group B); Malaysia, Korea (Group
C) and Denmark, Chinese Taipei (Group D) made it to the last eight.
The most significant of the group ties happened between Japan and
China in Group A. The two teams were engaged in a fiery battle, as
Sho Sasaki troubled Chen Long and Hiroyuki Endo/Kenichi Hayakawa
nearly stormed past Zhang Nan/Fu Haifeng. China survived these two
encounters, and went on to sweep the tie 5-0.

In the lower half of the draw, Denmark had deployed their limited
resources smartly. Jorgensen had struggled in a group match against
Chinese Taipei’s Hsu Jen Hao, but he was persisted with against
Japan in the quarter-finals to enable the experienced Hans-Kristian
Vittinghus a shot in the possible fifth match. Japan did well to bounce
back from 0-2 to 2-2, but Denmark’s ploy worked, with Vittinghus
prevailing over Riichi Takeshita in the fifth match.
The Scandinavians once again showed great heart in the semi-finals.
This time they were 0-2 down to Malaysia but bounced back. Emil
Holst, playing third singles, showed no sign of being intimidated as
he bulldozed Malaysia’s 2014 Thomas Cup hero Chong Wei Feng in
straight games. Denmark were in their ninth final.
Given all the surprises of the week, it was something of an anti-climax
that the final itself did not see any upsets. The contest was between
Denmark’s singles and Indonesia’s doubles and that’s how it unfolded.
The pivotal match was the first singles between Tommy Sugiarto
and Denmark’s Viktor Axelsen; once Denmark had taken it, Indonesia
were with their backs to the wall. Indonesia’s second and third singles
unravelled, with neither Anthony Ginting (against Jorgensen) nor
Ihsan Maulana Mustofa (against Vittinghus) able to shake off their
stage fright.
On the opposite court, Denmark’s heroes had found glory.
Denmark singles coach Kenneth Jonassen summed it up: “Everybody
has to stand for one another… the victory is no coincidence, we have
been working on these (fifth match) situations. There has been a lot
of honesty in team meetings. You need everything to come together
and a bit of luck.”
THOMAS CUP RANKING
1. DENMARK
2. INDONESIA
3. KOREA
3. MALAYSIA
5. CHINA
5. HONG KONG

5. CHINESE TAIPEI
5. JAPAN
9. FRANCE
9. THAILAND
9. ENGLAND
9. NEW ZEALAND

13. MEXICO
13. INDIA
13.GERMANY
13.SOUTH AFRICA
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CHINA BROOK NO CHALLENGE:
UBER CUP REVIEW
China became the most successful team, among men or women, with
the 14th title in the Uber Cup.
Tied with Indonesia’s men – 13-time winners of the Thomas Cup before the TOTAL BWF Thomas & Uber Cup Finals 2016 started in
Kunshan on 15 May, China barely broke into a sweat in defending their
crown. The 3-1 score in the final against Korea was a repeat of the
2014 result against Japan.
Unlike the Thomas Cup, which had a number of teams with nearly
equal strength, the Uber Cup was easier to predict. China once again
had a team with tremendous depth, talent and experience.
China had no trouble topping Group A, which included Denmark,
Malaysia and Spain. Among the group matches that commanded
attention was Wang Shixian against world champion Carolina Marin.
As with many of their earlier matches, it was a bitterly-fought contest,
with Wang throwing her arms up in relief after the final point was won:
19-21 21-18 21-19 in 87 minutes.
Malaysia put up some resistance against the rampant Chinese, with
Vivian Hoo/Woon Khe Wei and Chow Mei Kuan/Lee Meng Yean taking
a game off their opponents in the doubles.
The Malaysia-Spain Group A tie pitted the world champion Marin
against world junior champion Goh Jin Wei; their hotly-contested
encounter suggests that the Malaysian is rapidly coming of age, and
she could be one of the biggest stars in the not-too-distant future. Goh
even had match point against Marin before the experienced Spaniard
regained the initiative.
Meanwhile, Japan, in Group D, eased past Australia and Germany, but
had trouble against India, only narrowly winning the tie 3-2. Singles
star Nozomi Okuhara, looking a long way off from the confident player
who had won back-to-back World Superseries titles in Dubai and
Birmingham, was blown off court by Saina Nehwal 21-18 21-6. Japan
recovered from 0-2 down to clinch the tie over India.
Korea, Chinese Taipei (Group B) and Thailand, Indonesia (Group C)
qualified for the quarter-finals alongside China, Denmark, Japan and
India.
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The India-Thailand quarter-final was expected to go down the wire but
the Indians muscled their way past the Thais. Ratchanok Intanon’s
sublime form showed no sign of abating as she shot past Saina
Nehwal in straight games, but the rest of the Thai team crumbled.
India’s third singles teenager player Ruthvika Shivani, ranked 119, took
down Nitchaon Jindapol, ranked 94 places above her to ensure India’s
semi-final entry. In the other half, Japan and Korea set themselves up
for a semi-final clash.
There was much interest on how the two singles would go in the
China-India semi-final. Saina Nehwal had her chances against Li
Xuerui in the opening singles but Li was rock steady when it mattered;
Wang Shixian then made it 2-0 over Pusarla V Sindhu. The doubles
pair of Jwala Gutta/Sikki Reddy was thrashed by world champions
Tian Qing/Zhao Yunlei, and China were in yet another final.
In the other semi-final, Japan were inexplicably flat against the
Koreans. Okuhara’s nightmarish Uber Cup continued with a 47-minute
loss to Sung Ji Hyun; both of Japan’s much-heralded doubles
capitulated, and Korea were in with a chance at repeating their 2010
Uber Cup triumph.
China were never in danger of losing the final, but Korea came away
with a point thanks to Jung Kyung Eun/Shin Seung Chan’s defeat of
Tian Qing/Zhao Yunlei in a tense three-game thriller.
UBER CUP RANKING
1. CHINA
2. KOREA
3. INDIA
3. JAPAN
5. CHINESE TAIPEI
5. THAILAND

5. INDONESIA
5. DENMARK
9. MALAYSIA
9. UNITED STATES
OF AMERICA
9. HONG KONG CHINA

9. GERMANY
13. SPAIN
13. MAURITIUS
13.BULGARIA
13.AUSTRALIA
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IBERDROLA BWF WORLD
JUNIOR CHAMPIONSHIPS
BILBAO, SPAIN – 2 – 13 NOVEMBER 2016
Hosted in beautiful Bilbao in the north of Spain, the IBERDROLA
BWF World Junior Championships was the largest to date with 525
players competing in the entered the Teams Championships for the
Suhandinata Cup (52 teams) and in the Individual Championships
event 60 Members sent players to compete for the Eye Level Cups
and the honour of being World Junior Champion.

CHINA DOMINATES THE INDIVIDUAL
WORLD JUNIOR CHAMPIONSHIPS
FOR THE EYE LEVEL CUPS
China had a rollicking time at the IBERDROLA BWF World Junior
Championships 2016 in Spain, winning all but one title. The nearsweep of the individual titles followed their team triumph the previous
week.
The next generation of Chinese stars reassured their countrymen that
badminton is in trustworthy hands as they swept to straight-games
victories in both singles finals and men’s doubles; they had earlier
secured the mixed doubles title though the all-China finale. Each
winner was saluted by the tournament organisers with the gift of a
chapela – a beret representing sporting supremacy in the Basque
region which so graciously hosted the two-week event.

EVENT
Men’s Singles

GOLD
Sun Feixiang (CHN)

Having been frozen out of top honours in women’s singles for the
past nine years, the Chinese would have been most thrilled with Chen
Yufei’s 21-14 21-17 triumph in that prized category. Chen produced a
dominant display against Pornpawee Chochuwong, relaxing slightly in
the closing stages as her Thai rival fought back from 10-18 down to
17-19 – but the result was never in doubt. An over-rule by the umpire
took Chen to match point and she sealed gold with a line-kissing
smash to replace Wang Lin (in 2007) as the most recent Chinese
women’s singles world junior champion.
Only Japan’s Sayaka Hobara and Nami Matsuyama were able to break
down the Great Wall, wrestling the women’s doubles crown from top
seeds, Du Yue/Xu Ya, in a gruelling 84-minute battle that highlighted
the last afternoon of action in Bilbao Arena. Their 25-23 19-21 21-14
victory was Japan’s first-ever doubles championship in World Juniors
history.
In men’s singles, Sun Feixiang bestrode the Bilbao courts like
a colossus, blasting aside all challengers, though the Chinese
encountered his sternest test in the form of Chico Aura Dwi Wardoyo
in the final. Unfurling a combination of deft touches and stylish shots,
the Indonesian overcame a slow start and an eight-point deficit to level
the opening game. At 19-19, he appeared to have the momentum, only
to watch helplessly as Sun reached game point with a cheeky crosscourt shot behind his rival’s back.
The second game was all Sun as he romped home 21-19 21-12 and
accepted the spectators’ appreciation for a job well done before
breaking down in tears off court.
Sun’s team-mates Han Chengkai and Zhou Haodong outgunned Lee
Hong Sub and Lim Su Min, 21-17 21-14 in a much-anticipated men’s
doubles showdown. Having defied Chinese opposition in the quarterfinals and semi-finals, the Koreans finally met their match and had a
hard time coming to grips with the pace and angles of the top seeds.
China also savoured gold and silver in mixed doubles, with He Jiting
and Du Yue upgrading from the silver medal they won in Lima, Peru,
last year in 2015. The pair claimed bragging rights over their teammates Zhou Haodong/Hu Yuxiang with a polished 21-13 21-15
outcome.
SILVER
Chico Aura Dwi Wardoyo (INA)

BRONZE
Zii Jia Lee (MAS)
Kanthapon Wangcharoen (THA)

Women’s Singles

Chan Yufei (CHN)

Pornpawee Chochuwong (THA)

Natsuki Oie (JPN)
Ga Eun Kim (KOR)

Men’s Doubles

Han ChengKai/ Zhou Haodong (CHN)

Hong Sub Lee/ Su Min Lim (KOR)

Pakin Kuna- Anuvit/Natthapat Trinkajee (THA)
Fan Qiuyue/Xiangyu Ren (CHN)

Women’s Doubles

Sayaka Hobara/ Nami Matsuyama (JPN)

Du Yue/ Xu Ya (CHN)

Ga Eun Kim /Hyang Im Kim (KOR)
Yulfira Barkah/Jauza Fadhia Sugiarto (INA)

Mixed Doubles

He Jiting/Du Yue (CHN)

Zhou Haodong/Hu Yuxiang (CHN)

Tang Jie Chen /Ee Wei Toh (MAS)
Kyung Hoon Park/Hye Jeong Kim (KOR)
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CHINA RETAIN TEAM CROWN

Malaysia’s gripping run through the tournament, which saw them mow
down Indonesia in the final eight and then Thailand in the semi-finals,
was halted by China’s efficient machinery that was simply able to dig
deeper and capable of absorbing any pressure which came its way.

China stood mightily at the summit of the BWF World Junior Mixed
Team Championships yet again – reigning for an unprecedented 11th
time.

Japan and Thailand finished joint third; Indonesia beat Chinese Taipei
3-1 in the battle for fifth and sixth place while Denmark overcame
India, 3-2, to finish seventh.

Having swept all-comers impressively, the defending champions
inflicted a 3-0 defeat on Malaysia in the final. Playing an unchanged
line-up from that which downed Japan in the semi-final, they efficiently
retained their crown with victories in mixed doubles, men’s singles and
finally women’s singles.
1.

China

14.

USA

27.

New Zealand

40.

Lithuania

2.

Malaysia

15.

Poland

28.

Portugal

41.

Romania

3.

Japan

16.

Czech Republic

29.

Belgium

42.

Norway

3.

Thailand

17.

Hong Kong China

30.

Estonia

43.

Iceland

5.

Indonesia

18.

Sweden

31.

Macau China

44.

Faroe Islands

6.

Chinese -Taipei

19.

Canada

32.

Mexico

45.

South Africa

7.

Denmark

20.

Netherlands

33.

Bulgaria

46.

Mongolia

8.

India

21.

Russia

34.

Scotland

47.

Costa Rica

9.

Korea

22.

Ukraine

35.

Peru

48.

Armenia

10.

Singapore

23.

Slovenia

36.

Sri Lanka

49.

Finland

11.

France

24.

Belarus

37.

Hungary

50.

Moldova

12.

England

25.

Spain

38.

Slovakia

51.

Algeria

13.

Germany

26.

Australia

39.

Latvia

52.

Georgia
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DUBAI WORLD SUPERSERIES FINALS
DUBAI, U.A.E – 8 – 13 DECEMBER 2016

The title, coming four months after the Dane won bronze at the Rio
Olympics, and following Denmark’s Thomas Cup victory in which he
played a leading role, stated emphatically that Axelsen has entered
the big league.
In women’s singles, Chinese Taipei’s Tai Tzu Ying reproduced the
golden form that had seen her pick up the 2014 Dubai title. Incidentally,
her victory came over the same opponent that she had beaten in the
2014 final - Korea’s Sung Ji Hyun.
Women’s singles arguably has the most diverse characters and styles
of play, and it turned out some of the most entertaining displays. So
intense was the competition that Olympic champion Carolina Marin
(Spain) didn’t make it past the group stage.
Both the semi-finals were engaging affairs – Tai beating China’s Sun
Yu for the first time, while Sung beat recent tormentor Pusarla V
Sindhu of India.

A YOUNG GENERATION EMERGES
The Dubai World Superseries Finals featured the arrival of a new
generation of champions.
The third Dubai event closed out a year whose news cycle was
dominated by the Olympics. As expected, a number of veterans –
particularly in doubles – announced their retirements shortly after the
Olympics; one of the effects of these retirements was the emergence
of young, first-time World Superseries winners in subsequent months.
In singles, the most prominent of the first-time winners was Denmark’s
Viktor Axelsen, who picked up his debut Superseries crown in Dubai.
Having faltered in six finals, Axelsen showed aspects of his game that
hadn’t been on view before.
In his final against China’s Tian Houwei, Axelsen refused to do down
the route that he had previously, overcoming frustrating phases with
positive play instead of seeking desperate measures. These learnings
were evident even during his first-ever victory over Malaysia’s Lee
Chong Wei in the group match – in fact, it was that encounter that
showed Axelsen had turned a corner.

EVENT
Men’s Singles

GOLD
Viktor Axelsen (DEN)

Goh V Shem/Tan Wee Kiong picked up their second Superseries men’s
doubles crown following their success in Denmark. The Malaysians,
who hit big time at the Rio Olympics with their silver medal, won two
close group matches before cruising in the semi-finals over China’s
Chai Biao/Hong Wei and Japan’s Takeshi Kamura/Keigo Sonoda in
the final.
The effervescent Chen Qingchen (China) was victorious in both her
doubles finals, further proof that she was the ideal replacement for
the recently-retired legend Zhao Yunlei. Chen and Jia Yifan edged
past Korea’s Chang Ye Na/Lee So Hee in the women’s doubles semifinals before coming through a stern test against Olympic champions
Misaki Matsutomo/Ayaka Takahashi (Japan) in the final.
Chen was even more dominant in the mixed doubles with Zheng
Siwei, dropping only one game on the way to the title. Zheng/Chen
quelled all opposition – including the likes of England’s Chris Adcock/
Gabrielle Adcock and Denmark’s Joachim Fischer Nielsen/Christinna
Pedersen – with a degree of comfort.
Expect to hear more about the exploits of these young champions as
2017 unfolds.

SILVER
Tian Houwei (CHN)

BRONZE
Son Wan Ho (KOR)
Jan O Jorgensen (DEN)

Women’s Singles

Tai Tze Ying (TPE)

Sun Ji Hyun (KOR)

Pursuala V Sindhu (IND)
Sun Yu (CHN)

Men’s Doubles

V Shem Goh / Wee Kiong Tian (MAS)

Takeshi Kamura / Keigo Sonoda (JPN)

Chai Biao / Hong Wei (CHN)
Mads Conrad-Pete / Mads Pieler Kolding (DEN)

Women’s Doubles

Chen Qingchen / Jia Yifan (CHN)

Misaki Matsutomo / Ayaka
Takahashi (JPN)

Chang Ye Na / Lee So Ye (KOR)
Kamila Ryt Juhl / Christinna Pedersen (DEN)

Mixed Doubles

Zheng Siwei / Chen Qingchen (CHN)

Chris Adcock / Gabrielle Adcock (ENG)

Joachim Fischer Nie / Christinna Pedersen (DEN)
Praveen Jordan / Debby Susanto (INA)
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PARA-BADMINTON
PAUL KURZO - CHAIR
from China and Indonesia competing in international competitions in
2016, as well as players from lesser known badminton nations.

SUCCESSFUL EVENTS 2016
2016 saw a range of successful international sanctioned competitions
including:

PARA-BADMINTON COMMITTEE

•

2nd Turkish Para-Badminton International, Konya.

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2016

•

2nd Irish Para-Badminton International, Belfast.

•

3rd Indonesia Para-Badminton International, Solo.

•

Colombia Para-Badminton International, Medellin.

•

The year was very successful internationally with the highest
number of international para-badminton events in one calendar
year including:
--

Three Para-Badminton Continental Championships – Asia,
Europe, Pan Am;

--

Four Para-Badminton International events.

PARA-BADMINTON CONTINENTAL
CHAMPIONSHIPS

•

IPC confirms para-badminton is included in the Parapan American
Games 2019.

Increased participation numbers across all three continents compared
to the 2014 editions of the championships.

•

Phase 2 of the classification research project completed in Paris,
France.

•

•

Conducted para-badminton workshops in all five continental
regions.

COMMITTEE SCOPE OF WORK

•

The key focus of the Committee is to:
•

Promote para-badminton and provide advice on the integration of
para-badminton at all levels.

•

Review and recommend changes to regulations and laws.

•

Monitor planning and delivery of para-badminton competitions
and the calendar of events.

•

Oversee the development of para-badminton including education
programmes– classifiers, technical officials, coaches, event
organisers.

•

2016 IN REVIEW
The year was one of consolidation for para-badminton following the
announcement in October 2014 that badminton was included as a
sport for the Tokyo 2020 Paralympic Games.
Many national systems started to invest in para-badminton and
it became clear that more new players started to compete at an
international level. More than 200 new players entered the system over
a 12 month period and who were classified at an international level.
It became clear that a few systems had identified some significant
and new talent for para-badminton. We welcomed many more players

Asia – Beijing, China
--

11 countries. Malaysia, India, Indonesia, Japan, South Korea,
Thailand, Chinese Taipei, Hong Kong, Macau, China, Sri Lanka.

--

143 athletes.

--

9 countries medalled.

Europe – Beek, Netherlands
--

19 countries. Austria, Belgium, Denmark, England, Finland,
France, Germany, Ireland, Israel, Italy, Netherlands, Poland,
Russia, Scotland, Serbia, Spain, Sweden, Turkey, Wales.

--

143 athletes.

--

17 countries medalled.

Pan Am – Medellin, Colombia
--

9 countries.

--

Brazil, Canada, Chile, Colombia, Cuba, Guatemala, Peru,
Suriname, USA.

--

52 athletes.

--

9 countries medalled.

RESEARCH
A three-year research project continued to support an evidence-based
classification system in para-badminton.
•

Phase 2 of a research project into the classification system in
para-badminton was conducted in Paris, France.

•

The research project

is lead by Professor Dr Hanno Felder,
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Olympic Training Centre Saarbruken with our Senior Classifiers,
Dr Shamsul Azhar Shah and Dr Komwudh Konchalard.

•

Developed a highlights package of the European Para-Badminton
Championships for the BadmintonWorld.TV channel.

Phase 3 of the research project will focus on Standing Upper 5
(SU 5) and Short Stature 6 (SS 6) athletes and this will take place
in the first half of 2017.

•

Substantially increased the stock footage of players, and action
photos for promotional material and website presence of players.

DEVELOPMENT
The emphasis in 2016 was on more and better international events
and more international level players in the system. In 2016, there were
a range of focuses for development including classifier courses, coach
education, regional activation workshops in new countries / regions,
a classification research project and general technical support for
international events
•

Player and coach development projects were completed in
France, USA, Australia, UAE, Egypt, and Colombia.

•

The 2nd BEC Para-Badminton Education Course was delivered
during the European Para-Badminton Championships 2016 in
Beek, Netherlands.

•

A coach education training module is being developed along with
audio visual resources.

•

A classifier workshop was conducted in Beek, Netherlands.

•

Classifier training continued throughout the year with one new
International Classifier qualifying.

•

The BWF ‘i am badminton’ integrity campaign was implemented at
three Para-Badminton Continental Championships – Asia (China),
Europe (the Netherlands) and Pan Am (Colombia).

•

In 2017, plans are in place to continue to conduct integrated
training activities around events.

•

In 2017, BWF will conduct a development programme in the Pan
Am region through an IPC Grant from the Agitos Foundation.

PROMOTION
Promoting players as stars and identifying new talent who are likely
to be podium finishes at world events were priorities in 2016. Players
continue to be at the centre of the promotion of para-badminton.

TOKYO 2020 PARALYMPIC GAMES
A working group was established through the Para-Badminton
Commission to look at the medal programme and qualification
process regulations and qualifications for Tokyo 2020 Paralympic
Games and a proposal was submitted to the IPC in early February
2017.

BWF PARA-BADMINTON DEVELOPMENT
FRAMEWORK 2017
A Para-Badminton development framework was created for 2017
that includes education for administrator, coach, and players.
The framework also focused on regional development, women’s
participation, classifier courses as well as research. BWF will also
continue to develop technical officials to serve and support ParaBadminton events throughout the year.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Paul Kurzo – Chair
Wayne Somers – Deputy Chair
Ranjit de Silva
Nora Perry
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PARA-BADMINTON
ATHLETES’
COMMISSION

RICHARD PEROT - CHAIR

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2016

2016 IN REVIEW

•

The player of the Year Awards were once again integrated with the
annual BWF Player Awards for badminton in Dubai in December
2016 – a positive reinforcement of the “One Sport – One Team”
concept.

This year was the third year in the four year cycle of the Para-Badminton
Athletes’ Commission. Overall, the Commission focused on improving
communication with the para-badminton athlete population.

•

The Chair and Deputy Chair of the Athletes’ Commission supported
the “i am badminton” integrity campaign at three continental
championships – in Beek, the Netherlands for the European ParaBadminton Championships; in Beijing, China for the Asian ParaBadminton Championships; and in Medellin, Columbia for the Pan
Am Para-Badminton Championships.

Highlights of the year were:

•

Commission members attended a range of tournaments to meet
athletes and to seek input from them and discuss issues in parabadminton.

•

Para-Badminton Athletes’ Commission met four times during the
year.

•

Two Athletes’ Commission representatives attended the ParaBadminton Commission meetings in Geneva in March and
November 2016.

•

A key focus throughout the year was to increase the engagement
of players through the Athletes’ Commission Facebook page
going and talking to them face to face in competition venues.

•

All Commission members were active as athletes in 2016
competing in international competitions.

•

Hosted a players meeting at the three Continental Championships.

•

The Commission has promoted key anti-doping messages to the
athlete population – in particular around athletes applying for
Therapeutic Use Exemptions for medications athletes may need
to take.

•

The Chair of the Commission was in regular contact with the IPC
Athletes Commission Chair throughout the year.

COMMISSION SCOPE OF WORK

“I AM BADMINTON” INTEGRITY CAMPAIGN

The role of the Para-Badminton Athletes’ Commission is:

The Commission embraced the programme that was launched in
2015 and in 2016, the Chair of the Commission, Richard Perot became
one of the ambassadors of the programme. The para-badminton
athlete population have the same rules around anti-doping and antimatch manipulation as their badminton counterparts.

•

To liaise with players, organise players meetings at tournaments
and canvas their views and opinions on rules and regulations,
development and direction of para-badminton.

•

To represent the views of para-badminton athletes at ParaBadminton Commission meetings through its representatives.

•

To report back to the players on outcomes of meetings and
representations made at the Para-Badminton Commission
meetings.

Protection the rights of “clean and honest” players is essential. The
integrity awareness campaign aims to bring the key message of
“clean and fair sport” to the players through the in-venue activations
that focus on good sports values. The Commission is key to getting
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messages directly to the athlete population and the Commission
members are a good role model for all athletes in this regard.
Activations were held at the Para-Badminton Continental
Championships in Europe, Asia and Pan America and members of the
Commission supported these on the ground.

TOWARDS 2017
2017 will be an election year for the Commission and four members
elected for a four year term. A process will take place in the before
mid-2017 to announce the elections to take place at the BWF ParaBadminton World Championships in Ulsan, Korea in November 2017.
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COMMISSION MEMBERS
Richard Perot - Chair
Yau Tiam Ann – Deputy Chair
Antony Forster
Martin Rooke
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PARA-BADMINTON
CONTINENTAL
CHAMPIONSHIPS

EUROPEAN CHAMPIONSHIPS

ASIAN CHAMPIONSHIPS

The Dutch played host to the 2016 European Para-Badminton
Championships in October and this event attracted the best from
Europe.

The Asian Para-Badminton Championships 2016, held in Beijing from
24 to 27 November, hosted 143 players from 11 countries.

Lucas Mazur (FRA) and Karin Suter-Erath (SUI) were the stars of the
Championships, with each winning three gold medals.

The event was hosted by the National Paralympic Committee of China
at the China Administration of Sports for Persons with Disabilities
(CASPD) and this was the same venue that the organisers held the
first China Para-Badminton International in 2015.

Mazur and Suter-Erath’s talent and performances in 2016 – at these
Championships, were instrumental in them winning the BWF ParaBadminton Player of the Year in the male and female categories
respectively at the end of the year.
The European Para-Badminton Championships were held in Beek,
Netherlands, from 27 to 30 October and featured 143 players from 23
countries, France’s Mazur emerged as winner in men’s singles (SL4),
men’s doubles (SL3-SL4) with Mathieu Gilles Thomas and mixed
doubles (SL3-SU5) with Faustine Noel.
Switzerland’s Suter-Erath won the women’s singles (WH1) over
Germany’s Valeska Knoblauch; the women’s doubles (WH1-WH2)
with Turkey’s Emine Seckin, and the mixed doubles (WH1-WH2) with
England’s Martin Rooke.
Among the double titles were Martin Rooke, Germany’s Thomas
Wandschneider, England’s Krysten Coombs, Turkey’s Emine Seckin,
Turkey’s Ilker Tuzcu and England’s Rachel Choong.
With the Tokyo 2020 Paralympic Games on the horizon, the European
Championships had an increase in participation compared to the
previous event in 2014 when Spain hosted the competition. In 2014,
there were 98 athletes and 18 countries and the number of events also
increased from 16 in 2014 to 21 in 2016. This increase in competition
at the highest level in Europe is encouraging as we look towards Tokyo
2020.

This massive complex is one of the legacies of the Beijing 2008
Paralympic Games and is equipped with on-site hotel accommodation
which was a short walk to the competition venue.
A total of 22 events were played over 4 days with the hosts China
having the largest team with 34 players while Japan travelled with 29.
Competition was fierce. Three players from hosts China – Li Hongyan,
Li Fengmei and Ma Huihui – scored a double. Li Hongyan won the
WS (WH1) over compatriot Wang Ping and the WD (WH1-WH2) with
Yang Fan.
Li Fengmei won the WS (SS6) over Lin Shuangbao and then teamed
up with Luo Guangliang to win the mixed doubles (SS6).
Ma Huihui captured the WD (SL3-SU5) title with Cheng Hefang and the
WS (SL4-Extra) beating Indonesia’s Khalimatus Sadiyah Sukohandoko.
This tournament had more participation compared to in 2014 when
South Korea hosted the Asian Para Games – 109. The number of
events also increased from 15 – 22 in 2016.
The tournament showcased many talented athletes from the region.
The South Koreans dominated the wheelchair events whilst China
paraded their young talents. Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia, India
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banked on their more experienced players to deliver medals. Top three
gold winning nations were China, Korea and India
The whole organisation of the event from transportation through to
the medal ceremony was very professional and well organized.

PAN-AM CHAMPIONSHIPS
Fifty-two players from nine countries competed in 12 events at the
IV Pan-Am Para-Badminton Championships from 1 to 4 December
in Medellin, Colombia. This was the first time that Colombia hosted
a Para-Badminton Continental Championships with the USA and
Canada making their continental championships debut in Colombia.
Brazil had the largest team with 21 athletes and Peru came with 13.
The top two gold winning nations were Brazil and USA.
Brazil’s Marcelo Alves Conceicao, Cuba’s Rolando Bello and USA’s
Miles Krajewski won two titles each.
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Conceicao won the MS (WH1) over compatriot Rodolfo Cano and the
XD (WH1-WH2) with Maria Gilda Dos Santos. Bello took the singles
(SL3) and the MD (SL3-SL4, with Canada’s Pascal Lapointe) titles,
while Krajewski was triumphant in singles (SS6) against Peru’s Hector
Salva Tunque and in MD (SS6) with Danh Trang.
At all the Para-Badminton Continental Championships in 2016, BWF
planned and delivered an activation around the ‘i am badminton’
integrity campaign to raise awareness of clean and fair sport.
The Chair of the Para-Badminton Athletes Commission, Richard Perot
lead the on-site activation in Beek and Medellin with the Deputy Chair,
Yau Tiam Ann managing the campaign in Beijing.
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DEVELOPMENT &
SPORT FOR ALL
DAVID CABELLO - CHAIR

DEVELOPMENT & SPORT
FOR ALL COMMITTEE
HIGHLIGHTS 2016
•

The continued growth and popularity of the Shuttle Time Schools
Badminton programme amongst Members.

•

The launch of new resources to assist the growth and development
of Member Associations.

•

An increase in Olympic Solidarity funded activities for our
Members.

•

16 Olympic Solidarity Scholars qualified for Rio Olympic Games.

•

A proliferation of BWF Coach Education courses with 82 members
now having qualified BWF Coach Education tutors.

2016 IN REVIEW
2016 saw many positive developments for our department, with the
implementation of new resources designed to assist the development
and growth of our Member Associations. These include:
•

BWF Event Management Course – launched the introductory
online resource which is a prerequisite for the more advanced
practical courses. Tutor training for the practical courses. First
practical course run in December.

•

BWF National Administrators’ Course – launched the introductory
online resource which is a prerequisite for the more advanced
practical course, and tutor training for the practical course.

•

Membership Categorisation Tool - developed in cooperation
with the Continental Confederations, this tool increases our
efficiency by allowing us to target more accurately what type
of support is specifically required on a regional level. It will also
allow us to measure the return on investments to make us more
accountable and methodical in our strategy. The tool will replace
the quadrennial BWF Members survey and be available in three
language versions, English, Spanish and French.
Launch of the BWF Shuttle Time App – with 17 language versions
integrated.

COMMITTEE SCOPE OF WORK
The key focus of the committee is to:
•

Ensure plans for the development of badminton are in line with the
BWF Strategic Plan.

•

•

Work closely with the Continental Confederations and oversee
the development grants programme – its structure, focus and
investment and to ensure accountability.

SHUTTLE TIME

•

Develop training and education materials and models for
Continental Confederations and Members, which support grass
roots development and the education of the badminton workforce.

•

Build effective partnerships with key international bodies to
maximise opportunities for badminton.

The BWF Shuttle Time Schools Badminton Programme continues
to expand with 100 members now having commenced national
implementation programmes.
Other key developments include:
• 17 language versions completed with Nepalese, Swedish and
Tajik all in production.
•

100th implementation project in Panama
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•

Total number of views on BWF TV passing 1.1 million

Key developments in 2016 included:

•

Shuttle Time Website Launched

•

•

Shuttle Time University Course – resources available in English,
Spanish and German, with French and Arabic in production.

The Coach Education video clips have received more than
2,700,000 views on BadmintonWorld.TV.

•

More than 6,000 coach education resource packages have been
downloaded.

•

BWF Level 3 resources are being finalized and will be ready to pilot
in early 2017.

•

A para-badminton coaching module is being finalized for inclusion
in BWF Coach Level 1 resources early in 2017.

•

Shuttle Time Facebook page launched and has 7000 followers.

•

Shuttle Time App- App downloads in 144 countries with over
445,000 screen views.

•

•

Shuttle Time Youth Leaders Award – targets 16-18 year old
students and has a goal for the course to be included into
international curriculums.
Increase in funding for equipment to support projects globally.
BWF committed an additional US$166,000 for equipment to
support the continued growth of the Shuttle Time project. This
takes that total available per year to US$300,000.

COACH EDUCATION
Level 1 is now available in six languages (English, Spanish, French,
Portuguese, Czech and Slovenian) and Level 2 is available in four
languages (English, Spanish, French, and Portuguese).

PLAYER DEVELOPMENT
All five Continental Confederations have delivered player development
activities, and meet the funding criteria for this project. The funding has
had a positive impact on Continental Confederation championships
participation from less developed badminton nations. A notable
success for the programme came with two African players winning
matches in Rio. The first time that African players have achieved this
feat.
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WOMEN IN BADMINTON

•

In May 2016, the Women in Badminton Commission moved from
being under the responsibility of the IOC & International Relations
Committee to the Development & Sport for All Committee. The
activities of the Commission are reported on here.

This represents a substantial increase in funded activities for
Badminton during 2016.

BWF’s representatives in key forums in 2016 showed its commitment
to encouraging women in leadership positions in the sports world.
Representatives from the BWF and the wider badminton family
attended these key conferences in 2016:
•

IF Women in Leadership Forum – March 2016

•

Africa Women and Sport Conference – October 2016

UNOSDP (UNITED NATIONS ON SPORT
FOR DEVELOPMENT AND PEACE)
•

Shuttle Time Courses - Shuttle Time courses have been
conducted as part of three UN Youth Leaders Camps on three
different continents.

•

Badminton for All Project - US$87,000 funding was secured to
deliver this project in nine identified African member nations.
Using the Shuttle Time resources teachers will be trained to
introduce badminton in an inclusive manner to children with a
range of physical and intellectual disabilities.

SPORTS SCIENCE
The main focus is on providing research grants for badminton
research projects.
•

Reports received from all 2015/16 funded projects.

•

Six research projects were selected by the panel for 2016/17
financial support.

•

Reports from all BWF funded project to be published on the new
BWF education website in 2017.

PARTNERSHIPS – CONTINENTAL
CONFEDERATIONS
The Continental Confederations (CCs) are central to our work in
development and a range of enhanced funding was implemented in
2016 to support further development. These included: CC Capacity
Building Grant, CC Contingency Grant and increased support for
Shuttle Time Equipment.
The annual Continental Confederation Forum took place 26-30
September 2016 in Kuala Lumpur and again was a great success.
These five days of positive exchange of ideas reinforced the strong
working relationship between the CCs and the BWF development
department.
In looking forward, the BWF Council endorsed the Development and
Sport for All budget which has an allocation of more than US$3.2
million for CCs managed development programmes in 2017.

OLYMPIC SOLIDARITY
The following are the Olympic Solidarity funded activities for 2016:
•

8 National Technical courses for coaches.

•

5 National Structures activities.

•

5 Sports Science Scholarships.

•

30 Olympic scholarships for Rio – 16 scholars qualified winning a
total of 12 matches.

•

2 Regional Player pathway programmes.

1 African Francophone activity – 7 member nations benefited
from the project.

ASIAN SPORTS PARTNERSHIPS
Badminton Australia were successful in securing aid funding of
AU$200,000 to support Shuttle Time in Nepal in 2016. BWF’s
Development Team have supported the planning application and
planning phase of the project, with Badminton Asia Confederation
providing experts to deliver Shuttle Time Tutor Training in Nepal.
In 2016:
•

48 Shuttle Time Tutors were trained.

•

438 teachers were trained.

•

Equipment was supplied to support the implementation of
badminton programmes in 400+ schools.

SPECIAL OLYMPICS
During 2016 the BWF supported 5 regional courses in partnership
with Special Olympics. In total 96 Special Olympics tutors were
trained in the use Shuttle Time for children and adults with intellectual
disabilities. Shuttle Time as a user friendly resource is being promoted
throughout the Special Olympics global network and the resources,
and our partnership, was sighted as an example of best practice at the
Special Olympics Annual Conference.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
David Cabello - Chair
Jassem Kanso - Deputy Chair
Dagmawit Girmay Berhane
Akhilesh Das Gupta
Paul Kurzo
Sergey Shakhray
Nigel Skelt
Anton Subowo
Yuhan Tan
Vishu Tolan
Chipo Zumburani
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IOC &
INTERNATIONAL
RELATIONS
ETIENNE THOBOIS - CHAIR

IOC & INTERNATIONAL
RELATIONS COMMITTEE
HIGHLIGHTS 2016

--

China, Spain, Japan, Indonesia, Malaysia, India, Denmark,
England, Korea won medals.

--

Spain and Japan enjoyed their first Olympic gold medals – in
women’s singles and women’s doubles respectively.

--

Another high point was the emergence of the first Brazilian
Olympians in badminton, one who qualified in their own right.
Ygor Coelho de Oliveira and Lohyanny Vicente were stars for
the spectators in Riocentro 4 and they were great role models
for Rio and are an important legacy for badminton in Brazil.

•

Ticket sales were very good at the badminton competition, with
passionate, informed and very vocal spectators for every session
of badminton. In IOC post Games surveys, there was a very high
level of satisfaction amongst spectators and their experience at
badminton.

•

TV viewership was very impressive:

•

Rio 2016 was the high point for BWF with badminton achieving
several firsts in terms of medal spread, new Olympic medal
winners as well as strong TV audiences.

--

The highest rated event was the men’s single final between
Lee Chong Wei (MAS) and Chen Long (CHN) which reached
13 million on average in China.

•

Appointment of Saina Nehwal as member of the IOC Athletes’
Commission is another indication of BWF’s contribution and
participation within the Olympic Family.

--

Badminton achieved 7 out of the top 10 highest Olympic
broadcast figures for the Olympic Broadcast on CCTV5 in
China.

•

Initiatives with the Gulf Cooperation Council and Francophone
League signify BWF’s focus on establishing strategic partnerships
to increase its global footprint.

--

A major breakthrough was observed when the women’s
singles final took the number one spot in TV viewership for an
Olympic broadcast event in India.

--

Research from the Association of Summer Olympic
International Federations showed the Rio 2016 badminton
broadcast had a reach of more than 600 million with the top
five countries being China, India, Japan, USA and Brazil.

COMMITTEE SCOPE OF WORK
The key objective of the Committee is to:
•

Strengthen BWF’s position within the Olympic family to support
the recognition of our sport and the promotion of excellence in
BWF events and development initiatives.

•

Build effective relations with the institutional sports world which
enhance BWF’s representation and image as a Summer Olympic
Games IF.

REPRESENTATION
BWF continues its strong representation in the sports world:
•

2016 IN REVIEW
Another rewarding year for the IOC & International Relations
Committee with BWF representing itself extremely well in the Olympic
movement and enhancing its visibility and engagement in the
Paralympic movement.
RIO 2016
•

BWF’s aim to successfully present and deliver badminton was
realised when the venue received over 4,000 visitors who engaged
in the sports experience program during 11 days of competition.

•

BWF scored high points for its warm hospitality offered in the
Olympic Family Lounge which was well-visited by many guests
including 25% of the IOC membership.

•

The badminton competition held from 11 – 20 August 2016
started with 174 players from 47 countries and ended with a
varied medal landscape of 9 countries reaching medal categories
with hard-won and inspiring matches:

•

BWF and badminton have four IOC members amongst its ranks –
three of these are on Council:
--

BWF President, Poul-Erik Høyer is a member of the IOC
Entourage Commission and the IOC Evaluation Commission
for the bid cities of the 2024 Olympic Games.

--

Council member, Li Lingwei serves on the IOC Entourage
Commission, the Olympic Programme Commission, Olympic
Solidarity Programme and the Coordination Commission for
the 3rd Summer Youth Olympic Games in 2018 in Buenos
Aires.

--

Council member, Dagmawit Girmay Berhane serves on
the IOC Women and Sport Commission and Nominations
Commission.

--

Honorary Life Vice President, Sir Craig Reedie was until late
in 2016, IOC Vice President and Executive Board Member as
well as President of WADA. Sir Craig has been an IOC member
since 1994.

Saina Nehwal was appointed as a member of the IOC Athletes’
Commission in October and this strengthens BWF’s position in
the Olympic family and gives a badminton athlete’s voice in this
important IOC Commission.
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During 2016, BWF representatives actively participated in major
IOC and international sports meetings:

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS

--

SportAccord Convention - April 2016

--

129th IOC Session - August 2016

The following strategic partnerships were important in 2016 in
strengthening BWF’s vision of “making badminton a leading global
support accessible to all – giving every child a chance to play for life’.

--

IF Forum - November 2016

--

IOC Integrity in Sport Expert Group meetings - November
2016

In preparation for the debut of para-badminton at the Tokyo 2020
Paralympic Games, the BWF President, the Vice President ParaBadminton, Deputy Chair of the Para-Badminton Committee and
two other BWF delegates attended the 2016 Paralympic Games
and Observers Programme in Rio de Janeiro in September 2016.

RIO LAGACY PROJECT
Over a two year period leading up to Rio 2016, the BWF made
a significant investment in the Rio Legacy Project. This was a
collaboration between the Development & Sport for All and IOC
International Relations Committee to ensure there was a legacy from
the first Games in South America.
Maria van Grichen, the Rio Project Manager lead the project locally
which focused on four pillars:
•

Development - Using Shuttle Time to increase participation

•

Tournaments - Using tournaments to develop local skills and
knowledge.

•

Experiences - Public activations to create awareness and a media
buzz.

•

Rio 2016 - Making links between the Olympic Games and the
project.

The detail of the activities and outcomes are presented elsewhere in
the report.

•

Badminton’s inclusion in the Gulf Cooperation Council (GCC)
events increases opportunities to reach the grassroots in these
countries.

•

The partnership with the United Nations on Sport for Development
and Peace is bearing fruit with BWF supported projects in nine
countries.

•

Completed projects with Francophone League in two countries
along the Ivory Coast.

•

BWF continues to support programmes with Special Olympics
International.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Etienne Thobois – Chair
Dagmawit Girmay Berhane – Deputy Chair
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David Cabello
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Paul Kurzo
Li Lingwei
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Nigel Skelt
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MARKETING
NIGEL SKELT - CHAIR

MARKETING COMMITTEE

2016 IN REVIEW

HIGHLIGHTS 2016

2016 was a really significant year in which the Committee and
the Council looked at the long term view and made key decisions
to consolidate the position of the sport globally. The complete
review of the marketing performance to date gave the BWF a good
understanding of the commercial and media rights value of its
products. The decision to work with Infront Sports & Media from 2018
to 2025 is a long term strategic decision to take badminton to a new
level globally.

•

A consolidated year with our current agency partners - IMG Media,
ESG and Nielsen Sports.

•

In September 2016 a landmark announcement was made with
the appointment of Infront Sport & Media who will represent the
BWF television distribution rights and sponsorship rights until
2025 taking over from IMG Media and ESG.

•

The second TOTAL title sponsored BWF Major Event took place
successfully in Kunshan in China in May 2016 – the TOTAL BWF
Thomas & Uber Cups 2016.

•

In August the Rio 2016 Olympic Games were successfully staged
with badminton achieving the best ever medal spread in its history
as an Olympic sport.

•

The third annual Dubai World Superseries Final took place
successfully in Dubai, United Arab Emirates in December 2016,
ending an incredible year for the series.

IMG MEDIA & PRODUCTION
•

2016 was the third year of the current relationship with IMG Media
who deliver the BWF television broadcast relationships and who
manage our television production capabilities.

•

IMG Media consistently delivered 600 million households of
television viewers for the BWF event broadcasts throughout 2016.

•

In 2016, IMG Media produced 546 hours of live coverage of BWF
badminton events.

•

By the end of the year, the 156th episode of the weekly Badminton
Unlimited magazine show was produced and aired to its diverse
international audiences.

COMMITTEE SCOPE OF WORK
The key focus of the Committee is to:
•

Ensure that the strategic direction of the management of the
external agencies working with the BWF is maintained at all
times in order to continually enter new commercial partnerships
to grow the properties, maintain and grow existing partnerships
and maximise revenue opportunities with the highest levels of
profitability.

•

Develop incremental revenue models for the BWF to grow the
sport commercially.

•

Manage and further develop “Brand Badminton” in clearly defined
partnerships with our Continental Confederations, Member
Associations and with our host cities.

ESG
•

In 2016 ESG continued to manage the relationships with the
BWF sponsor community, most significantly Total Oil as the title
sponsor of the BWF Major Events and MetLife as the title sponsor
of the BWF World Superseries.

NIELSEN SPORTS
•

In 2016, Repucom was acquired by Nielsen creating a new sports
business called Nielsen Sports.

•

Nielsen Sports delivers all the media reach and brand value
analysis after every BWF event.
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•

The global valuation of the television broadcast coverage and
exposure delivered to our partners is an essential delivery and is
critical to our understanding of the value that BWF delivers to its
sponsors and host city partners.

•

These valuations provide strategic data to both IMG and ESG in
terms of growing the overall commercial portfolio.

INFRONT SPORTS & MEDIA
•

In late 2015, BWF undertook a comprehensive review of its
product values, future possibilities and agency relationships.

•

This review was concluded in 2016 with the recommendation that
Infront Sports & Media be appointed to represent the BWF media
distribution rights and the BWF sponsorship rights.

•

The agreement marks the first time BWF has worked with one
global partner for both media and sponsorship rights distribution.

•

Infront will also support the BWF with its television production
operations – providing host broadcast, post-production and
broadcaster servicing across all BWF Major Events.

•

The eight-year partnership includes all commercial rights on an
exclusive basis (media, marketing, digital, and betting) from 20182025. In fact, the relationship kicks off in 2017 but is limited to
sponsorship rights for only BWF Major Events in 2017.
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CONTINENTAL CONFEDERATION
MARKETING GRANTS
•

During 2016 the CC marketing grants were issued on the basis of
satisfying certain criteria where the focus is on player promotion
and star creation.

•

This is a core long term focus of the BWF working hand in hand
with the Continental Confederations.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Nigel Skelt – Chair
Etienne Thobois – Deputy Chair
Akhilesh Das Gupta
Jassem Kanso
Yuhan Tan
Gregory Verpoorten
Chipo Zumburani
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COMMUNICATIONS &
MEDIA
NG YOKE WENG - CHAIR

COMMUNICATIONS & MEDIA COMMITTEE

2016 IN REVIEW

HIGHLIGHTS 2016

2016 was a really important year for the exposure of badminton
globally, helped by the inspiring Rio Olympic Games broadcast globally
and BWF content uploaded across BWF’s digital platform.

•

At the TOTAL BWF Thomas & Uber Cup Finals in Kunshan, China,
in May 2016 the communications department delivered its first
Media Appreciation event which was well attended by media and
BWF Council Members.

•

During the Dubai World Superseries Finals in December 2016, the
BWF Facebook page grew to 300,000 followers representing a
50% increase over the year.

•

Throughout 2016 short-form video content continued to play
an important role in growing the BadmintonWorld.TV YouTube
Channel where in excess of 1.2 billion minutes of content were
viewed.

BWF MEDIA APPRECIATION EVENT

•

Shankai Sports in China have continued to develop our socialmedia presence there with bespoke content for our China
audience.

•

In May 2016 in Kunshan, China, the BWF communications team
hosted its first media appreciation event.

•

The event was attended by approximately 40 members of
the media, the BWF President, Secretary General and Council
members.

•

The group was briefed in detail on the BWF Strategic Plan 2016 2020 whilst enjoying breakfast and then were entertained with a
badminton quiz with prizes for all.

•

Comprehensive badminton broadcast coverage from the Rio
Olympic Games, with significant coverage recorded in China and
India in particular.

COMMITTEE SCOPE OF WORK

The communications team attended all BWF World Superseries
events in 2016 as well as the Olympic Games in Rio de Janeiro, the
TOTAL BWF Thomas & Uber Cup Finals and the IBERDROLA BWF
World Junior Championships in Bilbao and produced more than
400 articles and hundreds of posts on social media to engage fans
globally.

The key focus of the Committee is to:

COMMUNICATIONS INITIATIVES TO THE
SPORTS INSTITUTIONAL WORLD

•

Ensure regular and accurate communication of all matters in the
sport of badminton through the development of communications
tools to badminton fans, Member Associations, badminton
players, the sports institutional world, the media.

•

The Shuttle World newsletter was produced every quarter in 2016
and delivered to its audience.

•

•

In addition, to educate key groups on all communications matters
- BWF Council Members, staff and Member Associations.

BWF had a year-long relationship with “Around the Rings”,
delivering news and BWF brand messages via the most influential
internet presence on the Olympic Games.

•

Oversee the development / maintenance of key BWF websites as
a communications tool.

•

BWF continued its good relationship with “Inside the Games” in
2016.

•

Develop strong media and public relations to increase exposure
for the BWF and the sport in the print media.

•

Incorporate new media and streaming strategies of BWF activities
and events.

BWF DIGITAL PLATFORMS
•

2016 saw the full introduction of all of the BWF websites which
now include: a new BWF Corporate site, a Fan site, a World
Superseries site, Major Event sites as well as a dedicated Chinese
language Fan site that helps our fans and Member Associations
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access information faster from state-of-the-art, contemporary
platforms.

SOCIAL MEDIA
•

Facebook, Twitter and YouTube (BadmintonWorld.TV) were the
focus of BWF’s social media thrust in 2016.

•

Towards the end of 2016, the BWF reached a significant milestone
of more than 300,000 regular followers on its Facebook page.

•

All social-media platforms are growing steadily at 50% per annum.

•

The continued use of new, daily short clips delivered straight from
our events to the YouTube channel delivered some exciting results
with clips now generating in excess of 1.2 billion minutes viewed.

RIO 2016
•

Rio 2016 was a great success for badminton with medals won
by 9 countries – an unprecedented achievement in badminton’s
Olympic history.

•

In China, badminton matches from Rio 2016 were 7 of the top 10
most watched Olympic events.

•

In India, the women’s singles final was the most watched Olympic
event.
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CHINA COMMUNICATIONS PROJECT
•

The BWF appointed agency in China, Shankai Sports, manages all
social media in China.

•

Shankai Sports is active across We Chat, Weibo and YuoKu on a
daily basis delivering specific China focused content, differentiated
from the content of Western social media platforms.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Ng Yoke Weng – Chair
Ranjit de Silva – Deputy Chair
David Cabello
Lawrence Chew (until 16 September 2016)
Yuhan Tan
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ADMINISTRATION
VISHU TOLAN - CHAIR
MEMBERS FORUM AND AGM
•

The 2016 AGM hosted on 21 May at the Jinling Grand Hotel in
Kunshan, China was attended by delegates from 105 Member
Associations.

•

At the 6th edition of the BWF Member’s Forum was held the
day before the AGM and Andrew Ryan, Executive Director of the
Association of Summer Olympic Sports (ASOIF) and former COO
of the IBF, delivered the keynote address which focussed on the
governance of international sport and integrity of sport.

•

Other speakers included Jon-Paul St German (Special Olympics
International), Claude Ringuet and James Beatt (Repucom)
Jackie Lauff (Sport Matters), Ramji Bahadur (Badminton Nepal)
and Dima Alardah (Norwegian Refugee Council / UNHCR).

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
•

The BWF membership grew to 187 with four new Members and
one Associate Member joining the BWF in 2016.

•

The Constitution Working Group met twice in 2016 and continued
to refine elements of the BWF Handbook – especially the work
around the Code of Ethics.

•

Good governance and integrity of sport remained key focuses for
the Olympic movement and BWF worked on both these areas with
1) the release of new governance resources for the membership
and 2) enhancing the rules on betting in badminton and match
manipulation.

MEMBERSHIP
•

The BWF membership continued to grow with the admission of
four new Members - two from Africa (Niger and Guinea) and one
each from Asia and Oceania (United Arab Emirates and Papua
New Guinea). The Ligue de badminton de Guadaloupe was
admitted as an Associate Member.

•

The continuous monitoring on membership issues has seen a
reduction in cases of potential interference, conflicts and disputes
infringing on the autonomy of our Members.

COMMITTEE SCOPE OF WORK
The key objectives of the Committee are to:
•

Regularly review the BWF Statues, Guidelines for Council, Code of
Ethics, Judicial Procedures and Anti-Doping Regulations.

•

Ensure that the framework, structures and process for good
governance are in place to ensure efficient compliance with the
Constitution.

•

Oversee and guide on Membership issues and to protect the
autonomy of the sport at a national level in line with the Olympic
Charter.

•

Ensure effective and clear governance and collaboration structures
between the BWF and CCs including ensuring transparency and
accountability in BWF and CC framework.

2016 IN REVIEW
Good governance and integrity of sport remained key focus areas for
stakeholders in the Olympic Movement and the BWF made these a
priority in 2016. The Integrity Unit continued its work on the ant-doping
and anti-match fixing programmes and the Constitution and Ethics
Working Group delivered new resources for the membership on “good
governance”. The Working Group continued its work on reviewing
the Code of Ethics and a review of the regulatory framework around
judicial procedures.

VOTING STRENGTH 2017 - 2020
•

The four year assessment period to determine the voting strength
of each Member (2017 – 2020) ended on 30 September 2016.
The BWF office informed the membership on the analysis of the
key criteria (Clause 15.21 of the constitution) in November 2016.

•

The principle of proportionality is implemented through an
objective and transparent system to determine Voting Strength
of individual MAs which rewards MAs for their engagement in
international badminton and their individual contributions towards
the development of the sport globally.

•

This system was a subject of a submission to the eighth edition
of the prestigious Mohammad Bin Rashid Al Maktoum Creative
Sports Award in Dubai for which BWF won the International
Category. A cash prize of US$250,000 was part of this prestigious
award.
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CONSTITUTION AND ETHICS
WORKING GROUP

•

The focus continues to be on ensuring “clean” and “fair” sport –
badminton that is free from doping and match manipulation. The
rights of the “clean and honest” athletes must be protected and
these programmes aim to do this.

•

•

The BWF anti-doping programme implemented an Athlete
Biological Passport programme.

•

Enhanced regulations were introduced in March 2016 to ban
betting on badminton by players and strengthen rules around
match manipulation. The rules give greater powers to investigate
alleged cases.

•

After more than 12 months of hard work, the Working Group
launched a set of resources designed to assist BWF Members to
review their own governance documents and processes. These
are available on the BWF website.
The restructuring of the BWF Handbook including a review of
the Code of Ethics is still in progress and was expected to be
completed in the first quarter of 2017.

HONORARIUM FOR THE POSITION
OF BWF PRESIDENT
•

Following an analysis of general practice regarding honorarium
for Presidents of International Federations, the BWF Council
approved IN November to implement an honorarium for the BWF
President starting after the BWF elections in May 2017.

•

This decision reflects the increased requirements and time
commitments on the role of the BWF President. The honorarium
is set out to reflect a fair compensation to fulfil such duties. For
the new term from May 2017 to April 2021 the elected BWF
President will receive an honorarium of US$100,000 annually.

INTEGRITY UNIT
•

The Integrity Unit continued to focus on anti-doping and antimatch fixing through a number of key strategies: 1) an integrity
awareness campaign, 2) a comprehensive athlete monitoring
and testing programme and 3) the engagement of the services of
professionals with the right expertise.

AWARDS
The Council approved a range of awards proposed by the Awards
Commission and Administration Committee. The list of awards and
recipients are detailed in other parts of this annual report.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Vishu Tolan – Chair
Gregory Verpoorten – Deputy Chair
Geraldine Brown
Lawrence Chew (until 16 September 2016)
Mehdi Karbasian
Nora Perry
Sergey Shakhray
Ranjit de Silva
Dato’ Wira Lim Teong Kiat
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AWARDS –
CELEBRATING
EXCELLENCE

At the 2016 BWF AGM Delegates Welcome Dinner in Kunshan, the
BWF honoured two outstanding administrators for their contributions
and service to the sport and the international badminton community.
The Herbert Scheele Trophy was awarded to Andrew Ryan, former
Chief Executive of the International Badminton Federation. During his
tenure between 1994 to 2003, the IBF membership grew considerably
and Andrew was a key figure in that development. Andrew who left
the IBF in 2005 has remained a strong BWF and badminton supporter.

Young Lucas Mazur of France took the Male Para-Badminton Player of
the Year award for his impressive performance in 2016. He won triple
gold at the Turkey and Ireland Internationals and won the European
Para-badminton Championships singles title in the SL 4 sport class.
The Female Para-Badminton Player of the Year title went to Karin
Suter-Erath of Switzerland. She beat three other nominees for the top
honour. This was another exceptional year for this seasoned athlete.
Karin who was unable to be in Dubai will receive her award at the BWF
World Championships in Glasgow in August 2017.

Dr. Keiko Veronica Ono Fonseka (BRA) received the Women in
Badminton award for her dedication and commitment to the
development of badminton in Brazil through sports development
projects to increase the number of women badminton players and to
keep them motivated.

China’s rising star Chen Qingchen won the Eddy Choong Award for
‘Most Promising Player of the Year’ ahead of compatriots Li Junhui /
Liu Yuchen and Malaysia’s Goh Jin Wei.

PLAYER OF THE YEAR AWARDS

The awards were presented by BWF Deputy President Gustavo
Salazar during a spectacular evening hosted in Dubai at the start of
the Dubai World Superseries Finals.

The best players for 2016 were saluted at the Players’ Reception and
Gala Dinner for the Dubai World Superseries on 12 December 2016.
Malaysia’s Lee Chong Wei triumphed over Chen Long (CHN), Jan O
Jorgensen (DEN), Zhang Nan/Fu Haifeng (CHN) and his team-mates
Goh V Shem/Tan Wee Kiong to win the Male Player of the Year for the
fifth time.
Japan’s Misaki Mastsumoto and Ayaka Takahashi, Olympic Gold
medallist in women’s doubles became the first Japanese to win the
Female Player of the Year Award since it was instituted in 1998. They
were nominated along with Denmark’s Christina Pederson / Kamilla
Rytter Juhl, Thailand’s Ratchanok Intanon and compatriot Nozomi
Okuhara.

India’s PV Sindhu received the inaugural Most Improved Player of the
Year award from His Excellency Dawood Al Hajri, President, UAE Table
Tennis and Badminton Association.
For the first time, the Golden Shuttle Awards were presented to the
Olympic gold medallist in all five categories for the Rio 2016 Olympic
Games - Carolina Marin of Spain (women’s singles); Misaki Matsutomo
/ Ayaka Takahashi of Japan (women’s doubles); and Tontowi Ahmad/
Liliyana Natsir of Indonesia (mixed doubles), China’s Chen Long (men’s
singles) and Fu Haifeng / Zhang Nan (men’s doubles).
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ADMINISTRATION AWARDS
At its meeting in Bilbao in October 2016, the BWF Council confirmed
the list of the administrative awards to acknowledge significant
contribution, long service and excellence.
•

Lifetime Achievement Award - Erland Kops (DEN)

•

Distinguished Service Award – Malcolm Banham (ENG)

•

Women in Badminton Award - Dr. Judith Cousins (AUS)

•

Meritorious Service Award
--

Mrs. Sylvia Jormanainen (FIN)

--

Pullela Gopichand (IND)

--

Vimal Kumar Unnikrishnan Nair (IND)

--

Arvind Singh (IND)

--

S.A Raval (IND)

--

Dato’ Dr. Khoo Kim Eng (MAS)
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FINANCE
DATO’ WIRA LIM TEONG KIAT - CHAIR
resources provided by the federation to the Continental
Confederations.

2016 IN REVIEW
2016 was the year of the Rio 2016 Olympic Games and there was a
very good financial result for the year, partly due to Olympic income,
and partly due to the BWF Major Events related commercial and
media-rights income.

FINANCE COMMITTEE
HIGHLIGHTS 2016
•

•

The Committee continued its oversight role of the financial control
systems, accounting and reporting functions, audit processes
and investments policy.
Overall a very good year with higher than expected commercial
revenues – total income for the year was US$29,783,911 which
includes the quadrennial Olympic Income of US$15.4 million
against a budget of US$17.5 million. There is a part payment still
outstanding from the IOC which is due to come in the first half of
2017.

Overall, the actual performance for the year compared favourably
against the budget. The BWF in its 2016 budget expected a surplus
of US$8.5 million, however the final result was a surplus of US$11.8
million.
The difference between budget and actual was largely due to:
•

Higher commercial revenues for BWF Major Events than expected.

•

Extraordinary income of US$250,000 as a result of winning the
International Category of the H.H. Sheikh Mohammed Bin Rashid
Al-Maktoum Creative Sports Award.

•

Prudent spending in each of the major areas of activity.

The final result at the end of the financial year was that BWF had a
positive reserve of US$33.8 million carried forward.

•

Prudent spending against the budget resulted in a total expenditure
for the year of US$17,967,411.

•

Profit for the year was US$11,816,500, against an expected
budget surplus of US$ 8.5 million.

EXPENDITURE

•

The above meant the reserve carried forward as at 31 December
2016 was US$33.8 million.

The result was very good due to overall prudent spending. During the
past year, BWF continued to support and invest in a number of major
areas of its work related to:

COMMITTEE SCOPE OF WORK

•

Investment in development – through the development
programmes in cooperation with the Continental Confederations.
There was quite a substantial financial support in 2016 of US$3.4
million distributed across the various programmes with the five
Continental Confederations.

•

Ensure all statutory and legal obligations related to finance are
fulfilled within the time frame stipulated by authorities.

•

Ensure that adequate procedures and financial controls are
applied to all accounting functions.

•

•

Oversee and ensure that full and accurate financial accounts are
maintained to reflect the true and accurate state of affairs of the
Federation.

Investment in events – including travel grants for players to attend
the BWF World Junior Championships and the instant review
system.

•

The Rio Legacy Project and the Rio 2016 Test Event in November
2015.

•

Present timely and accurate financial information to Council as
appropriate to facilitate management decisions.

•

Para-badminton development and the Para-Badminton World
Championships.

•

Assist and provide financial guidelines in the implementation
of any activity of the federation transferred to the Continental
Confederations. Ensure proper accountability of any or all

•

Support for members to participate in the annual Member’s
Forum and AGM.
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•

BWF’s new digital platforms – seven new websites and an IT
administrative system.

FORECAST

•

Professional fees were higher than budgeted due to legal advice
on commercial contract preparation.

•

Loss on currency due to fluctuations in Malaysian Ringgit and
Pounds Sterling which are unrealised losses. A large part of this
loss is related to the outstanding payment of the location grant
from the Malaysian Government.

The increased revenues through more robust commercial models and
better broadcast rights agreements has positioned the BWF well for
the medium term future. This together with prudent spending places
the BWF at the end of the financial year in a strong financial situation
and with a reserve of a number of years’ operating expenses, which
has been an important goal.

Prudent spending ensured the overall expenditure was well within
budget.

AUDITOR
The AGM in 2016 confirmed a new auditor for the current financial
year. The 2016 AGM appointed BDO Malaysia as BWF auditors for
2016. The audit process for this first year with BDO Malaysia has gone
smoothly.

CURRENCY RISK
Currency fluctuations is a continuing factor in our business and taking
steps to minimize currency risk requires on-going monitoring. The
rising USD against all other currencies and the weakening Malaysian
Ringgit are two factors the BWF has had to continue to deal with this
year.

FINANCE COMMITTEE
Dato’ Wira Lim Teong Kiat (Chair)
Chipo Zumburani ( Deputy Chair )
David Cabello
Mehdi Karbasian
Paul Kurzo
Ng Yoke Weng
Nigel Skelt
Wayne Somers
Peter Tarcala
Etienne Thobois
Vishu Tolan
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BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION

(Registered under the Societies Act, 1966 in Malaysia)
COUNCIL’S STATEMENTS AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2016
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BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION
(Registered in Malaysia)
STATEMENT OF COUNCIL RESPONSIBILITIES
For each financial year, the Constitution of the Federation requires the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Federation and of its financial performance and cash flows for that period to be prepared. In preparing those financial statements, the
Council has decided to:
•

select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

•

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

•

state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements; and

•

prepare the financial statements on the basis that the Federation shall not be dissolved.

The Council has general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to it to safeguard the assets of the Federation and to prevent
and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION
(Registered in Malaysia)
STATEMENT BY THE COUNCIL
We, Poul-Erik Hoyer and Dato’ Wira Lim Teong Kiat, being two of the members of the Council, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Council,
the financial statements set out on pages 64 to 81 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards, and the requirements of the Constitution of the Federation so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Federation as at 31 December 2016 and of the financial performance and cash flows of the Federation for the financial year then ended.
On behalf of the Council,

Poul-Erik Høyer					Dato’ Wira Lim Teong Kiat
President						
Finance Committee Chair
Kuala Lumpur
19 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION
(Registered in Malaysia)
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Badminton World Federation, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016 of the Federation, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of reognised gains and losses and
statement of cash flows of the Federation for the financial year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 64 to 81.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Federation as at 31 December 2016,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards
(“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the requirements of the Constitution of the Federation.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities
We are independent of the Federation in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute
of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the international Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The Council of the Federation is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report but does not include the financial statements of the Federation and our auditors’ report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made
to us after the date of this auditors’ report.
Our opinion on the financial statements of the Federation does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Federation, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the annual report is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of the Federation or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the
Council of the Federation.
Responsibilities of the Council for the Financial Statements
The Council of the Federation is responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Federation that give a true and fair view in accordance
with MFRSs, IFRSs, and the requirements of the Constitution of the Federation. The Council is also responsible for such internal control as the
Council determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Federation that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Federation as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
(a)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Federation, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(b)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Federation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION (continued)
(Registered in Malaysia)
Auditors’ Responsibilities for Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also (continued):
(c)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Council.

(d)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Federation, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements of the Federation represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the Council with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
Other Matters
The financial statements of the Federation for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 were audited by another firm of chartered accountants
whose report dated 18 March 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.
This report is made solely to the members of the Federation, as a body and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other
person for the content of this report.

BDO
AF: 0206
Chartered Accountants
Kuala Lumpur
19 March 2017
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BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION
(Registered in Malaysia)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Note

2016

2015

USD

USD

GROSS INCOME
BWF tournaments and open events

3

28,953,940

16,150,231

Olympic development grants

4

85,673

83,219

Subscriptions

5

217,000

216,200

-

138,580

Office location support
Creative sports award

5

250,000

-

Other income

5

154,533

171,523

29,661,146

16,759,753

9,681,334

8,801,536

116,189

92,823

9,797,523

8,894,359

6

3,426,804

2,673,175

21,229

30,702

Educational activities

7

162,187

172,722

Other development activities

8

427,638

376,851

62,881

92,772

TOTAL GROSS INCOME
EXPENDITURE
Events
BWF tournaments and open events
Committee and working groups

Development
Continental grants
Continental Confederation workshop

Para-Badminton development
Women In Badminton
Committee and working groups

2,885

7,435

36,807

36,742

4,140,431

3,390,399

International Olympic Committee & International Relations

9

116,424

818,472

Marketing

10

243,226

363,428

Communication

11

84,135

75,998

Administration

12

32,655

40,696

Integrity

13

274,928

106,650
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BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION
(Registered in Malaysia)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (continued)

Note

2016

2015

USD

USD

EXPENDITURE (continued)
Governance
Annual general meeting

172,909

BWF Members’ forum and gala dinner
Council, athlete commission and disciplinary committee

General and Administrative Expenses

182,916

97,398

121,001

533,213

618,217

803,520

922,134

15

1,989,276

1,846,719

93,518

99,661

17

128,523

21,234

21,000

22,000

-

70,488

14

Professional and Other Fees
Insurance
Legal and professional charges
Audit fee
Bad debts written off
Depreciation

19,974

19,814

124,102

130,447

45,900

13,378

433,017

377,022

22,785

25,680

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

17,937,920

16,861,557

OPERATING SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

11,723,226

(101,804)

120,515

129,443

2,250

11,059

122,765

140,502

11,845,991

38,698

29,491

29,377

11,816,500

9,321

Net unrealised currency exchange loss
Net realised currency exchange loss

Finance Costs

Interest income

18

Late payment interest

SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION
Taxation
TOTAL SURPLUS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION
(Registered in Malaysia)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

Note

2016

2015

USD

USD

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Equipment

19

17,533

24,411

Current assets
Trade and other receivables

20

2,287,492

2,111,427

Cash and bank balances

21

36,759,717

27,970,265

39,047,209

30,081,692

39,064,742

30,106,103

33,817,495

22,000,995

TOTAL ASSETS
FUNDS AND LIABILITIES
Funds
Accumulated surplus

22

F S Coaching fund

23

10,000

10,000

World Junior Championships fund

24

317,966

317,966

Dr. Kang Young Joong’s fund

25

271,708

304,661

34,417,169

22,633,622

4,619,573

7,443,104

28,000

29,377

4,647,573

7,472,481

39,064,742

30,106,103

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Current tax liabilities

TOTAL FUNDS AND LIABILITIES

26

STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
The Federation has no recognised gains and losses other than the income and expenditure recognised for the year.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION
(Registered in Malaysia)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Note

2016

2015

USD

USD

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Surplus before taxation

11,845,991

38,698

Adjustments for:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

19

19,974

19,814

Interest income

18

(120,515)

(129,443)

Net unrealised losses in currency exchange losses

124,102

130,447

Operating profit before changes in working capital

11,869,552

59,516

Trade and other receivables
Other payables and accruals
Utilisation of Dr. Kang Young Joong’s fund
Cash generated from operations
Tax paid
Net cash from operating activities

(267,616)

(198,621)

(2,821,878)

2,550,864

(32,953)

(33,632)

8,747,105

2,378,127

(31,491)

(47,191)

8,715,614

2,330,936

(13,096)

(26,405)

(2,996,521)

107,962

120,515

129,443

(2,889,102)

211,000

5,826,512

2,541,936

(33,581)

(129,355)

17,155,867

14,743,286

22,948,798

17,155,867

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of equipment

19

(Placements)/Withdrawal of fixed deposits placed with licensed banks with original
maturity of more than three (3) months
Interest received
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION
(Registered in Malaysia)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2016
1.

GENERAL INFORMATION
Badminton World Federation is a Federation registered under the Societies Act, 1966 and domiciled in Malaysia. The principal place
of business and registered office of the Federation are located at Unit 17.05, Level 17, Amoda Building, 22, Jalan Imbi, 55100 Kuala
Lumpur.
The principal activities of the Federation are administrating, promoting, developing and popularising the sport of Badminton throughout
the world.
The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 were authorised by the Council on 19 March 2017.

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements of the Federation have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”),
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), and the requirements of the Constitution of the Federation.
The financial statements of the Federation have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise stated in the
financial statements.
The financial statements are presented in US Dollar (“USD”), which is also the functional currency of the Federation.
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the effects of adoption of new MFRSs
during the financial year. The new MFRSs and amendments to MFRSs adopted during the financial year are set out in Note 30 to the
financial statements.

3.

4.

5.

BWF TOURNAMENTS AND OPEN EVENTS
2016

2015

USD

USD

BWF tournaments

13,553,940

16,150,231

Olympic income

15,400,000

-

28,953,940

16,150,231

2016

2015

USD

USD

(a)

Tournaments income is recognised when the respective tournaments are held.

(b)

Olympic income is recognised on an accrual basis.

OLYMPIC DEVELOPMENT GRANTS

Olympic solidarity fund

15,673

13,219

International Federation Development Fund

70,000

70,000

85,673

83,219

SUBSCRIPTIONS, CREATIVE SPORTS AWARDS AND OTHER INCOME
(a)

Subscriptions and creative sports awards income are recognised on an accrual basis.

(b)

Other income consists mainly of income earned from the equipment approval scheme and is recognised on an accrual basis.
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CONTINENTAL GRANTS

Base level
Programme funding

2016

2015

USD

USD

1,295,000

1,295,000

604,073

563,367

56,500

-

Capacity building
Equipment

274,311

43,136

Player development

350,000

350,000

Tournament

172,000

153,000

Thomas and Uber Cup Qualifying

252,500

-

Technical official special assistance

40,537

18,122

Marketing

79,500

45,000

Women In Badminton

54,083

15,000

Para-Badminton development

57,000

-

191,300

190,550

3,426,804

2,673,175

Returns of subscription

Continental development grant relates to grants to the five Continental Federations to support the development of badminton in those
regions as follows:

7.

2016

2015

USD

USD

Badminton Confederation of Africa

695,510

597,439

Badminton Asia Confederation

736,698

556,435

Badminton Europe

896,476

697,410

Oceania Badminton Confederation

476,205

308,191

Badminton Pan American Confederation

621,915

513,700

3,426,804

2,673,175

EDUCATIONAL ACTIVITIES
2016

2015

USD

USD

Coaches education

69,605

Olympic solidarity courses

14,740

9,006

Shuttle time

77,002

96,308

840

4,753

162,187

172,722

University badminton

62,655
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8.

OTHER DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES
2015

USD

USD

Research projects/Sports science

100,700

53,977

Capacity building - membership development

119,172

145,721

82,819

167,153

Continental special project
Special development for World Junior Championship
Outdoor shuttlecocks development project

9.

2016

10,000

10,000

114,947

-

427,638

376,851

INTERNATIONAL OLYMPIC COMMITTEE & INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS
2016

2015

USD

USD

Peace in sports

490

Multi sports events support

10.

2,359

420

9,102

Rio legacy project

92,336

738,476

Committee and working groups

23,178

68,535

116,424

818,472

MARKETING

BWF branding

2016

2015

USD

USD
46

3,923

Report and analysis

38,500

63,300

Media production/Public relations support

48,669

37,595

China market initiative

62,000

62,000

755

13,605

20,000

110,000

-

12,000

73,256

61,005

243,226

363,428

BWF trademark
Digital media archive
Speedminton
Committee and working groups
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COMMUNICATION
2016

2015

USD

USD

Institutional communication plan

48,531

48,520

Institutional media subscription

10,723

12,420

Media relation/Media player education

14,766

2,387

Communication newsletter

5,051

8,569

Committee and working groups

5,064

4,102

84,135

75,998

ADMINISTRATION
2016

2015

USD

USD

Awards
Committee and working groups

13.

30,331

25,079

10,365

32,655

40,696

INTEGRITY

Anti-Doping

14.

7,576

2016

2015

USD

USD

195,744

61,496

Investigation and legal advice

42,306

-

Player integrity education

24,727

33,900

Committee and working groups

12,151

11,254

274,928

106,650

COUNCIL, ATHLETE COMMISSION AND DISCIPLINARY COMMITTEE

Council meeting

2016

2015

USD

USD

440,294

552,462

President and Deputy President’s expenses

51,609

44,615

Athlete commission

28,586

13,287

Disciplinary committee

12,724

7,853

533,213

618,217
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15.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
The general and administrative expenses can be analysed as follows:

Staff costs (Note 16)

2016

2015

USD

USD

1,618,666

1,446,360

Other staff costs

18,093

32,888

Staff travelling

14,992

7,306

Office general administrative

67,605

77,352

Other office, property and utilities costs

17,039

19,893

Office rental
Computer consumables, network maintenance and web project

56,309

65,627

196,572

197,293

1,989,276

1,846,719

16.
STAFF COSTS
											Number of employees
2016
Full time

2015
28

28

2016

2015

USD

USD

Employee costs
Wages and salaries

17.

1,572,991

1,401,439

Social security contribution

2,176

2,903

Employees’ provident fund

43,499

42,018

1,618,666

1,446,360

LEGAL AND PROFESSIONAL CHARGES

Legal fees
Tax consultant fees
Other professional fees

2016

2015

USD

USD
9,108

16,107

2,300

2,334

117,115

2,793

128,523

21,234
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INTEREST INCOME
2016
Dr. Kang
Young
Joong’s
Fund

WJC
Fund

USD

USD

Bank interest

-

Fixed deposit interest

2015

Other

Dr. Kang
Young
Joong’s
Fund

WJC
Fund

Other

USD

USD

USD

USD

-

233

-

-

77

3,047

3,180

120,282

2,368

2,226

129,366

3,047

3,180

120,515

2,368

2,226

129,443

Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method.
19.

EQUIPMENT
Office furniture
and office
equipment

Computer
equipment
and software

Total

USD

USD

USD

Cost
Balance as at 1 January 2015

27,690

161,950

189,640

1,550

24,855

26,405

29,240

186,805

216,045

-

13,096

13,096

29,240

199,901

229,141

27,047

144,773

171,820

838

18,976

19,814

27,885

163,749

191,634

838

19,136

19,974

28,723

182,885

211,608

Balance as at 31 December 2015

1,355

23,056

24,411

Balance as at 31 December 2016

517

17,016

17,533

Additions
Balance as at 31 December 2015/
1 January 2016
Additions
Balance as at 31 December 2016
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 January 2015
Charge for the financial year
Balance as at 31 December 2015/
1 January 2016
Charge for the financial year
Balance as at 31 December 2016
Carrying amounts

Items of equipment are initially recorded at cost. After initial recognition, equipment are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of the assets to their residual values on a straight line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The principal annual depreciation periods are as follows:
Office furniture and office equipment									
Computer equipment and software									

3 years
3 years
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20.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2016

2015

USD

USD

Trade receivables
Third parties

2,346,844

1,957,446

Less: Impairment losses

(755,350)

(755,350)

1,591,494

1,202,096

584,275

435,347

2,175,769

1,637,443

111,723

473,984

2,287,492

2,111,427

Other receivables
Other receivables
Total loans and receivables
Prepayments

(a)

Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables, and measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(b)

Normal trade credit term granted by the Federation is 30 - 60 days (2015: 30 - 60 days) from date of invoice.

(c)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables of the Federation are as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired

2016

2015

USD

USD

1,518,647

418,174

Past due, not impaired
1 to 60 days
More than 60 days

Past due and impaired

-

3,300

72,847

780,622

72,847

783,922

755,350

755,350

2,346,844

1,957,446

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate to members and sponsorship agents with good track record
with the Federation. Based on past experience, the Council believes that no allowance for impairment is necessary in respect
of those balances.
None of the Federation’s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have been renegotiated during the financial
year.
Receivables that are past due but not impaired
Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired relate to members and sponsorship agents for whom there is no objective
evidence that the receivables are not fully recoverable. No impairment has been made on these amounts as the Federation is
closely monitoring these receivables and is confident of their eventual recovery.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(c)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables of the Federation are as follows: (continued)
Receivables that are past due and impaired
Trade receivables of the Federation that are past due and impaired at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Individually impaired
2016

2015

USD

USD

Trade receivables, gross

755,350

755,350

Less: Impairment losses

(755,350)

(755,350)

-

-

Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of the reporting period relate to debtors that are
in significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These receivables are not secured by any collateral or
credit enhancements.
(d)

Credit risk concentration profile
The Federation does not have any significant exposure to any individual customer or counterparty nor does it have any major
concentration of credit risk related to any financial instruments.

(e)

The foreign currency exposure profile of trade and other receivables are as follows:

Ringgit Malaysia (“MYR”)

		

2015

USD

USD

674,551

441,486

EURO

2,177

2,177

British Pound Sterling (“GBP”)

1,872

-

1,608,892

1,667,764

2,287,492

2,111,427

United States Dollar (“USD”)

(f)

2016

Sensitivity analysis of USD against foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period, assuming that all other variables
remain constant, are as follows:

MYR/USD

- strengthen by 10% (2015: 10%)

EURO/USD

- strengthen by 10% (2015: 10%)

- weaken by 10% (2015: 10%)
- weaken by 10% (2015: 10%)
GBP/USD

- strengthen by 10% (2015: 10%)
- weaken by 10% (2015: 10%)

2016

2015

USD

USD

34,065

35,921

(34,065)

(35,921)

209

216

(209)

(216)

185

-

(185)

-
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21.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
2016

2015

USD

USD

Cash and bank balances

22,948,798

17,155,867

Fixed deposits with licensed banks

13,810,919

10,814,398

36,759,717

27,970,265

		
(a)

Included in cash and bank balances are cash held for the F S Coaching Fund (Note 23), World Junior Championships Fund
(Note 24) and Dr. Kang Young Joong’s Fund (Note 25) of USD599,674 (2015: USD632,627).

(b)
		

The weighted average effective interest rate of fixed deposits with licensed banks of the Federation is 2.10% (2015: 3.34%)
per annum. The average maturity period range from 6 to 12 months (2015: 6 to 12 months).

(c)

The foreign currency exposure profile of cash and bank balances are as follows:

MYR

2016

2015

USD

USD

512,677

648,315

Swiss Franc (“CHF”)

(d)
		

6,776

7,308

GBP

40,109

-

USD

36,200,155

27,314,642

36,759,717

27,970,265

Sensitivity analysis of USD against foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period, assuming that all other variables
remain constant, are as follows:

MYR/USD

- strengthen by 10% (2015: 10%)

GBP/USD

2015

USD

USD

60,937

64,810

(60,937)

(64,810)

673

731

- weaken by 10% (2015: 10%)

(673)

(731)

- strengthen by 10% (2015: 10%)

4,012

-

(4,012)

-

- weaken by 10% (2015: 10%)
CHF/USD

2016

- strengthen by 10% (2015: 10%)

- weaken by 10% (2015: 10%)
(e)

The Federation’s cash and bank balances and deposits are not significantly exposed to interest rate risk.

(f)
		

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following as at the end of the
reporting period:
2016

2015

USD

USD

Cash and bank balances

22,948,798

17,155,867

Fixed deposits with licensed banks

13,810,919

10,814,398

36,759,717

27,970,265

(13,810,919)

(10,814,398)

22,948,798

17,155,867

Fixed deposits placed with licensed banks with original maturity of
more than three (3) months

		

Total cash and cash equivalents
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ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
2016

2015

USD

USD

Balance as at 1 January

22,000,995

21,991,674

Surplus for the financial year

11,816,500

9,321

Balance as at 31 December

33,817,495

22,000,995

F S COACHING FUND
The F S Coaching Fund represents a gift of USD10,000. Interest generated by this fund is used for coaching.

At beginning and end of financial year

24.

2016

2015

USD

USD

10,000

10,000

WORLD JUNIOR CHAMPIONSHIPS FUND
In 1992, the Federation received USD300,000 from the sponsors of the first World Junior Championships. Income generated by this
fund is to be used for the championships.

At beginning of financial year

2016

2015

USD

USD

317,966

317,966

3,180

2,226

(3,180)

(2,226)

317,966

317,966

Interest on fund (Note 18)
Transfer to tournament income
At end of financial year

25.

DR. KANG YOUNG JOONG’S FUND
From 2006 to 2013, the Federation received funds from Dr. Kang Young Joong. The Fund and the income generated from this Fund
are to be used for:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

assisting Continental Confederations in their development activities:
assisting in developing badminton for the disabled;
assisting in events development/activities and prize money; and
assisting other projects as defined by Dr. Kang Young Joong.

At beginning of financial year

2016

2015

USD

USD

304,661

338,293

3,047

2,368

Fund distributed during the financial year

(36,000)

(36,000)

At end of financial year

271,708

304,661

Interest on fund (Note 18)

During the financial year, the Council approved the use of USD36,000 (2015: USD36,000) from Dr. Kang Young Joong’s Fund to provide
one-off scholarships to all medallists of the World Junior Individual Championships for Eye-Level Cups 2016.
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26.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
2016

2015

USD

USD

Other payables

1,592,180

1,262,627

Accruals

2,941,468

3,365,116

85,925

2,815,361

4,619,573

7,443,104

Deferred income

(a)
		

Other payables and accruals are classified as other financial liabilities, and measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

(b)

Included in other payables is USD1,127,727 (2015: USD63,959) owing to members/players for outstanding prize monies.

(c)

Deferred income of the Federation represents deferred revenue from hosting fees and subscription income of major events.

(d)

The foreign currency exposure profile of trade and other payables are as follows:
2016

2015

USD

USD

EURO
USD

(e)
27.

6,058

-

4,613,515

7,443,104

4,619,573

7,443,104

Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk is not presented as the impact is not material to the Federation.

TAXATION
2016

2015

USD

USD

Current income tax
- Current year provision
- Under/(Over) provision in prior years

28,000

30,000

1,491

(623)

29,491

29,377

Tax exemption
In 2016, the Federation successfully obtained the tax exemption granted by the Ministry of Finance. The tax exemption is granted for
the statutory level on all income of the Federation’s official activities (except for income on dividends) for a period of 2 years beginning
year of assessment 2016 to 2017. The Federation is currently awaiting approval in obtaining the status as an International Organisation
from the Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Malaysia, to enable the Federation to apply for tax exemption beyond year of assessment 2017.
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TAXATION (continued)
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to the surplus before taxation at the statutory income tax rate to income tax expense
at the effective income tax rate of the Federation is as follows:
2016

2015

USD

USD

Reconciliation of tax expense
Surplus before taxation
Tax calculated using Malaysia tax rates
Non-deductible expenses
Tax exempt income

11,845,991
2,958,073

5,778

44,144

46,323

(3,008,562)

(21,658)

2,920

3,972

31,425

(4,415)

28,000

30,000

1,491

(623)

29,491

29,377

Deferred tax assets not recognised
Other items

38,698

Under/(Over) provision in prior years

Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

Unutilised tax losses
Deductible temporary differences

2016

2015

USD

USD

2,429,000

2,429,000

66,406

54,725

2,495,406

2,483,725

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not probable that future taxable profits would be
available against which the deductible temporary differences could be utilised.
The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation.
28.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT
Leases as lessee
Future minimum lease payables under non-cancellable operating leases at the reporting date are as follows:

Less than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years

2016

2015

USD

USD

94,906

27,892

-

67,739

94,906

95,631

The Federation leases its headquarters under operating leases. The leases typically run for a period of two years, with an option to
renew the lease after that date.
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29.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Federation is exposed to financial risks arising from its use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.
(i)

Credit risk
Cash deposits and trade receivables could give rise to credit risk which requires the loss to be recognised if a counter party
fails to perform as contracted. The counter parties are members and sponsorship agents. It is the policy of the Federation
to monitor the financial standing of these counter parties on an ongoing basis to ensure that the Federation is exposed to
minimal credit risk.
Exposure to credit risk
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables is represented by the
carrying amounts recognised in the statement of financial position.
Information regarding credit enhancements for trade receivables is disclosed in Note 20 to the financial statements.
Credit risk concentration profile
The Federation does not have any significant exposure to any individual trade receivables or counterparty nor does it have
any major concentration of credit risk related to any financial instruments.

(ii)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Federation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Federation’s
exposure to liquidity risk arises principally from its various payables.
The Federation maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents and bank facilities deemed adequate by the management to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the liabilities of the Federation at the end of each reporting period based
on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

On demand
or within
one year

Undiscounted
financial
liabilities

USD

USD

At 31 December 2016
Other payables and accruals

4,619,573

4,619,573

7,443,104

7,443,104

At 31 December 2015
Other payables and accruals
(iii)

Interest rate risk
The Federation’s cash and bank balances, deposits and short term receivables and payables are not significantly exposed
to interest rate risk.

(iv)

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument would fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Federation is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions that are denominated in currencies other than its functional
currency. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Ringgit Malaysia, Euro, British Pound Sterling and Swiss Franc.
The Federation does not hedge these exposures but the Council will keeps this policy under review.
The exposure and sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk have been disclosed in Notes 20, 21 and 26 to the financial
statements respectively.
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ADOPTION OF NEW MFRSs AND AMENDMENTS TO MFRSs
(a)

New MFRSs adopted during the financial year
On 1 January 2016, the Federation adopted the following Standards that are mandatory for annual financial periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016.
Title										Effective Date
MFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts							
1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12, MFRS 128 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception										
1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations 		
1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 101 Disclosure Initiative						
1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 138 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation									
1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 141 Agriculture: Bearer Plants				
1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 127 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 			
1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRSs Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle			
1 January 2016
There is no material impact upon the adoption of these Standard and Amendments during the financial year, other than the
adoption of Amendments to MFRS 101 Disclosure Initiative, which resulted in the following:

(b)

(a)
		
		

Grouping together supporting information for items presented in the statement of financial position, statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of recognised gains and losses and statement of cash
flows within the notes to the financial statements.

(b)
		

Disclosures of only significant accounting policies comprising the measurement bases used in preparing the
financial statements and other accounting policies that are relevant to the financial statements.

New MFRSs that have been issued, but only effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
The Standards that are issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of financial statements of the Federation are
disclosed below. The Federation intends to adopt these Standards, if applicable, when they become effective.
Title										Effective date
Amendments to MFRS 12 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014 - 2016 Cycle		
1 January 2017
Amendments to MFRS 107 Disclosure Initiative						
1 January 2017
Amendments to MFRS 112 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses		
1 January 2017
Amendments to MFRS 1 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014 - 2016 Cycle		
1 January 2018
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 as issued by IASB in July 2014)				
1 January 2018
MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers						
1 January 2018
Clarifications to MFRS 15								
1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 128 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014 - 2016 Cycle		
1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 140 Transfers of Investment Property					
1 January 2018
IC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration			
1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 4 Applying MFRS 9 Financial Instruments with MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts See MFRS 4
											
Paragraphs 46 and 48
MFRS 16 Leases									
1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture							
Deferred
The Federation is in the process of assessing the impact of implementing these Standards, since the effects would only be
observable for future financial years.
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BUDGET

INCOME ACCOUNTS IN USD

FORECAST
2018
CM 1116

BUDGET
2017
CM 0317

BUDGET
2016
CM 1015

ACTUAL
2016
DEC

OLYMPIC
Olympic Income

15,400,000

17,500,000

2,100,000

-

85,673

70,000

70,000

70,000

15,485,673

17,570,000

2,170,000

70,000

BWF Tournaments ( include other income )

13,708,473

12,502,500

16,841,000

22,861,000

EVENTS INCOME TOTAL

13,708,473

12,502,500

16,841,000

22,861,000

Membership Subscriptions

217,000

215,800

217,000

217,000

Creative Sports Award

250,000

-

-

-

ADMINISTRATION INCOME TOTAL

467,000

215,800

217,000

217,000

120,515

60,000

120,000

120,000

2,250

-

-

-

122,765

60,000

120,000

120,000

29,783,911

30,348,300

19,348,000

23,268,000

IF Development Fund & Olympic Solidarity
OLYMPIC INCOME & DEVELOPMENT GRANT TOTAL
EVENTS

ADMINISTRATION

FINANCE
Investment Income
Late Payment Interest
FINANCE INCOME TOTAL

TOTAL INCOME
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FORECAST
2018
CM 1116

BUDGET
2017
CM 0317

BUDGET
2016
CM 0516

ACTUAL
2016
DEC

881,555

1,000,000

28,673

100,000

0

0

15,000

30,000

8,560,809

8,865,745

10,455,099

13,925,907

182,192

289,300

389,600

389,600

13,964

29,000

23,870

23,870

EVENTS
Total Tournament Operations
Technical Officials Total
Technical Equipments, Handbook & Uniforms
CC Events Workshop

14,141

28,000

28,000

28,000

Events Committee & Working Group

62,705

133,000

110,630

100,630

Para-Badminton Committee & Working Group
EVENTS TOTAL

53,484

90,000

85,000

85,000

8,887,295

9,435,045

11,092,199

14,553,007

1,295,000

1,295,000

1,359,750

1,359,750

604,073

640,000

600,000

600,000

56,500

150,000

200,000

200,000

CONTINENTAL CONFEDERATION GRANTS
Base Level Grant (Dev)
Programme Funds (Dev)
CC Capacity Building (Dev)
Equipment Grant (Dev)

274,311

274,000

300,000

300,000

Players Development (Dev)

350,000

350,000

420,000

420,000

Tournaments Grant (Events)

172,000

180,000

180,000

180,000

TUC Grant (Events)

252,500

298,000

-

298,000

TO Development Grant (Events)

40,537

60,000

90,000

90,000

Marketing Grant (Marketing)

79,500

100,000

100,000

100,000

Women In Badminton Grant (Dev)

54,083

100,000

100,000

100,000

Para-Badminton Development Grant (Para)

57,000

100,000

100,000

-

191,300

194,220

195,300

195,300

21,229

34,000

34,000

34,000

3,448,033

3,775,220

3,679,050

3,877,050

Subscription Grant
Continental Confederation Workshops
CONTINANTAL CONFEDERATION GRANTS TOTAL
DEVELOPMENT & SPORT FOR ALL
Education Activities
Shuttle Time Schools Programme
Shuttle Time - Resource Development

59,645

86,500

55,000

50,000

Shuttle Time - Equipment Support

17,357

26,000

-

-

Shuttle Time Schools Programme Total

77,002

112,500

55,000

50,000

840

10,000

10,000

10,000

34,553

96,000

85,500

86,000

University Badminton
Coaching
Coaching Resources Project
Coaches Conferences / Master Class
Coaching Total

35,052

78,000

78,000

80,000

69,605

174,000

163,500

166,000

Expert Tutor Cost / Fees

14,740

27,000

27,000

27,000

Education Activities Total

162,187

323,500

255,500

253,000

100,700

80,000

87,000

150,000

-

-

50,000

-

Other Development Activities
Research Projects
Research Projects - Sports Science
Research Projects - Eye / Health
Research Projects Total

100,700

80,000

137,000

150,000

Capacity Building - Membership Development

119,172

200,000

200,000

200,000

Special Projects

82,819

155,800

181,300

185,000

World Junior Champs Cultural Programme

10,000

15,000

15,000

15,000
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EXPENDITURE ACCOUNTS IN USD

FORECAST
2018
CM 1116

BUDGET
2017
CM 0317

BUDGET
2016
CM 0516

ACTUAL
2016
DEC

Outdoor Shuttlecock Development Project

114,947

115,000

100,000

100,000

Other Development Activities Total

427,638

565,800

633,300

650,000

Para-Badminton Development

62,881

245,000

195,000

245,000

Committee & Working Group Meeting Total

36,807

53,630

53,630

50,000

2,885

35,000

35,000

35,000

692,398

1,222,930

1,172,430

1,233,000

Women’s Commission
DEVELOPMENT & SPORT FOR ALL TOTAL
IOC AND INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS
Peace & Sport

490

-

-

-

Multi Sports Events Support

420

10,000

10,000

10,000

92,336

560,000

-

-

Rio Legacy Project
Committee & Working Group Meetings
IOC AND INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS TOTAL

23,178

105,000

105,000

105,000

116,424

675,000

115,000

115,000

-

20,000

20,000

20,000

MARKETING
Marketing Collateral - Brochure, PR Gifts, Souvenirs
Marketing Strategy Activation - Brand
Reporting / Analysis
Global Stars Creation Project

46

10,000

10,000

10,000

38,500

100,000

100,000

100,000

-

10,000

10,000

10,000

Media Production / PR Support

48,669

120,000

120,000

120,000

China Marketing Initiative

62,000

65,000

65,000

65,000

755

-

-

-

Trademark of BWF logo's/names
Digital Media Archive

20,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

Committee & Working Group Meeting

73,256

60,000

70,000

70,000

243,226

405,000

415,000

415,000

MARKETING TOTAL
COMMUNICATION
Institutional Communication Plan

48,531

60,000

50,000

50,000

Institutional Media Subscription

10,723

10,000

10,000

10,000

Media Relation

14,766

25,000

25,000

25,000

-

40,000

40,000

40,000

5,051

12,500

12,500

12,500

-

2,000

2,000

2,000

Media Player Education
Communication Newsletter
Media Equipment
Committee & Working Group Meetings
COMMUNICATION TOTAL

5,064

22,000

25,000

25,000

84,135

171,500

164,500

164,500

7,576

35,000

10,000

10,000

-

5,000

5,000

5,000

ADMINISTRATION
Awards
Resource Centre
Committee & Working Group Meetings

25,079

25,000

25,000

25,000

ADMINISTRATION TOTAL

32,655

65,000

40,000

40,000

195,744

204,000

324,190

279,190

-

35,000

10,000

10,000

INTEGRITY
Anti-Doping - Testing
Match Fixing Monitoring Services
Special Projects - Research - Servicing
Investigation
Legal Advice
Education
Integrity Database System and Licenses
Staff Travel
INTEGRITY TOTAL

-

25,000

15,000

15,000

41,390

95,000

68,000

49,000

916

15,000

25,000

25,000

24,727

31,200

26,950

26,950

-

-

60,000

-

12,151

26,000

31,180

31,180

274,928

431,200

560,320

436,320
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FORECAST
2018
CM 1116

BUDGET
2017
CM 0317

BUDGET
2016
CM 0516

ACTUAL
2016
DEC

GOVERNANCE
AGM
Subsidies to Members to Travel to AGM

55,155

57,920

70,800

68,460

117,754

192,800

273,075

192,800

Hotel for Members Delegates to Attend AGM

53,141

73,500

110,000

73,500

BWF Member Forum

11,232

26,880

27,780

27,120

Gala Dinner

33,025

70,000

70,000

70,000

-

-

62,000

100,000

440,294

750,205

1,027,560

809,850

51,609

100,000

100,000

100,000

Honoradium for President
Council Meetings
President and Deputy President’s Expenses
BWF Athletes Commission

28,586

32,980

39,400

39,400

Disciplinary / Appeal / Doping Hearing Panels

12,724

20,000

25,000

25,000

803,520

1,324,285

1,805,615

1,506,130

1,792,704

2,483,884

3,668,000

3,359,500

196,572

280,897

407,500

291,000

-

24,000

20,000

5,000

1,989,276

2,788,781

4,095,500

3,655,500

Insurance

93,518

130,000

130,000

143,000

Legal Fees

9,108

55,000

60,000

66,000

GOVERNANCE TOTAL
GENERAL OPERATIONS
General Administration
Office Expenses incl Staff Cost
IT - Secretariat, Events, Website, Digital Museum
Statute Book
General Administration Total
Professional and Other Fees

Compensation
Other Professional Services
Audit Fees
Bad Debts Provisions / Bad Debts Write Off
Depreciation Fixed Assets
Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss
Professional and Others Total
GENERAL OPERATIONS TOTAL

-

-

-

-

119,415

9,224

10,500

11,500

21,000

30,000

30,000

33,000

-

30,000

30,000

30,000

19,974

73,000

75,000

75,000

170,002

25,000

25,000

25,000

433,017

352,224

360,500

383,500

2,422,293

3,141,005

4,456,000

4,039,000

22,785

30,800

40,000

45,000

FINANCE
Bank Charges
Committee & Working Group Meetings

-

12,000

-

-

FINANCE TOTAL

22,785

42,800

40,000

45,000

TAXATION

29,491

50,000

50,000

50,000

BWF TOTAL EXPENDITURE

17,967,411

21,838,985

23,605,114

26,504,007

BWF TOTAL INCOME

29,783,911

30,348,300

19,348,000

23,268,000

BWF SURPLUS / ( DEFICIT )

11,816,500

8,509,315

(4,257,114)

(3,236,007)

CAPITAL (RESERVES) AS AT 1ST JANUARY

22,000,995

22,000,995

33,817,495

29,560,381

CAPITAL (RESERVES) AS AT 31ST DECEMBER

33,817,495

30,510,310

29,560,381

26,324,374

SURPLUS / ( DEFICIT )

11,816,500

8,509,315

(4,257,114)

(3,236,007)

CONTINGENCY FUND

-

-

-

-

INVESTMENT IN PROPERTY

-

-

-

-

-

(5,000,000)

(5,000,000)

-

PROJECTED SURPLUS / ( DEFICIT )

OTHER INVESTMENT INSTRUMENTS

11,816,500

3,509,315

(9,257,114)

(3,236,007)

CAPITAL (RESERVES) AS AT 1ST JANUARY

22,000,995

22,000,995

33,817,495

24,560,381

CAPITAL (RESERVES) AS AT 31ST DECEMBER

33,817,495

25,510,310

24,560,381

21,324,374
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MEMBERS

AFRICA - (41)

OCEANIA - (15)

Algeria, Benin, Botswana, Burundi, Cameroon, Central African Republic,
Congo, Congo Kinshasa, Egypt, Equatorial Guinea, Eritrea, Ethiopia,
Ghana, Guinea, Ivory Coast, Kenya, Lesotho, Libya, Madagascar,
Malawi, Mauritania, Mauritius, Morocco, Mozambique, Namibia,
Niger, Nigeria, Saint Helena, Seychelles, Sierra Leone, Somalia, South
Africa, Sudan, Swaziland, Tanzania, Togo, Tunisia, Uganda, Zambia,
Zimbabwe.

Australia, Cook Islands, Fiji, Guam, Kiribati, Nauru, New Zealand,
Norfolk Island, Papua New Guinea, Samoa, Tahiti, Tonga, Tuvalu.

ASSOCIATE MEMBER
- Ligue de Badminton Réunion.

ASIA - (43)
Afghanistan, Bahrain, Bangladesh, Bhutan, Brunei, Cambodia, China,
Chinese Taipei, DPR Korea, East Timor, Hong Kong, India, Indonesia,
Iran, Iraq, Japan, Jordan, Kazakhstan, Korea, Kuwait, Kyrgyzstan, Laos,
Lebanon, Macau, Malaysia, Maldives, Mongolia, Myanmar, Nepal,
Pakistan, Palestine, Philippines, Qatar, Singapore, Sri Lanka, Syria,
Tajikistan, Thailand, Turkmenistan, United Arab Emirates, Uzbekistan,
Vietnam.
ASSOCIATE MEMBERS
- Saudi Arabia

EUROPE - (52)
Albania, Armenia, Austria, Azerbaijan, Belarus, Belgium, Bosnia &
Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia, Cyprus, Czech Republic, Denmark,
England, Estonia, Faeroe Islands, Finland, France, Georgia, Germany,
Gibraltar, Greece, Greenland, Hungary, Iceland, Ireland, Israel, Italy,
Latvia, Liechtenstein, Lithuania, Luxembourg, Macedonia, Malta,
Moldova, Monaco, Montenegro, Netherlands, Norway, Poland,
Portugal, Romania, Russia, Scotland, Serbia, Slovakia, Slovenia, Spain,
Sweden, Switzerland, Turkey, Ukraine, Wales.

ASSOCIATE MEMBERS
- Northern Marianas
- New Caledonia

PAN-AMERICA - (36)
Argentina, Aruba, Barbados, Bermuda, Brazil, Canada, Cayman Islands,
Chile, Colombia, Costa Rica, Cuba, Curacao, Dominican Republic,
Ecuador, El Salvador, Falkland Islands, Grenada, Guatemala, Guyana,
Haiti, Honduras, Jamaica, Mexico, Panama, Paraguay, Peru, Puerto
Rico, St. Lucia, Surinam, Trinidad & Tobago, USA, Uruguay, Venezuela
ASSOCIATE MEMBER
- French Guiana
- Ligue de Badminton de Guadaloupe
- Martinique
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V Shem Goh / Wee Kiong Tan (MAS) – Silver, FU Haifeng / Zhang Nan (CHN) – Gold, Marcus Ellis / Chris Langridge (GBR) - Bronze
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NOTICE OF THE
ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING 2016

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Badminton World Federation will be held at The Star Gold Coast, Queensland,
Australia on Saturday 20 May 2017 at 1000 hours.
1.

PRELIMINARY BUSINESS
1.1
1.2
1.3

2.

MINUTES
2.1

3.

To confirm the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on Saturday 21 May 2016 (Annexure A).

COUNCIL REPORT
3.1
3.2
3.3

4.

President’s Remarks
Appointment of scrutineers
Roll call

To receive the Report of Council and its Committees, and other reports for the year ending 31 December 2016.
To adopt the Financial Statements, duly audited, for the year ending 31 December 2016.
To receive the 2017 budget and the provisional budget for 2018.

COUNCIL ELECTIONS
To consider the nominations and conduct the elections of the President, Deputy President, Vice President Para-Badminton and 18 other
Council members of the Federation for a term of office of four years in accordance with Clause 18.1 of the BWF Constitution.
Further details on the nominees are contained in Annexure B to this Order Paper.

4.1
President – 1 nominee			
Proposed by:
			
							
4.1.1
Poul-Erik Høyer (DEN)			
Badminton Denmark		
		Seconders:
		
Armenia, Bulgaria, Cuba, England, Georgia, Guatemala, Guyana, Jamaica, Macedonia, Norway, Romania, Serbia, Suriname,
		Turkey.
.
4.2

Deputy President – 1 nominees 		

Proposed by:

4.2.1

Gustavo Salazar Delgado (PER)		

Jamaica Badminton Association		
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		Seconders:
		
4.3

Armenia, Bulgaria, Canada, Cuba, Georgia, Guatemala, Guyana, Macedonia, Romania, Serbia, Suriname, Turkey.
Vice-President – Para-Badminton – 1 nominee

Proposed by:

4.3.1
Paul Kurzo (SUI)					Swiss Badminton		
			
		Seconders:
		
		
Australia, Austria, Belgium, Canada, England, Faroe Islands, Finland, Iran, Lebanon, Mauritius, Singapore, Spain, Uganda,
		Zimbabwe.
4.4

Council Members

		

34 nominations as listed in Annexure C to this Order Paper.

		

Election results will be announced under Item 9 of the Order Paper.

5.

PROPOSALS – BWF COUNCIL
The Council of the BWF proposes the following to the membership for approval.
5.1

Approval of the BWF Appeals Panel – 2017 - 2021

To approve the members of the BWF Appeals Panel nominated by the membership as per Clause 31.6 of the Constitution.
Further details are contained in Annexure D of this Order Paper.
5.2

Approval of Amendments to the Constitution

To approve amendments to the Constitution that ensures Continental Confederation staff are not eligible for election to the BWF Council.

18.3
		
		
		

Nominations for election to Council and for Officer positions (Clause 18.1)
shall be made in writing by a Member in Good Standing and sent directly
to the Secretary General of the Federation so as to reach the Federation
not later than the closing date published in accordance with Clause 15.1.

18.4
		

Staff members of Continental Confederations are not eligible for nomination
for Council or Officer positions on Council (Clause 18.1).

18.5
		
		
		

Nominations shall be seconded by a different Member in Good Standing
from the proposer. Seconding of nominations must be in writing, and
reach the Federation by the same published closing date as for
nominations.

Rationale
BWF and Continental Confederation staff work very closely together on a day to day basis and amongst other things manage the
requirements of the BWF Development Grants programme. This interaction on a regular/daily basis needs to take place between
operational staff in an environment where there is no perceived or actual conflict of interest for either party.
Since BWF allocates more than three million dollars annually through these programmes and processes, the BWF staff should not have
to work with Continental Confederation staff who are also members of the BWF Council - but to deal with Continental Confederation staff
as equals.
A Council Member will generally be perceived as being of a higher status with higher authority than a BWF staff member, which may create
an unbalanced influence on decisions. It is also not appropriate that a BWF Council Member being paid as a staff member of a Continental
Confederation is included in decisions around the budget allocations from BWF to the Continental Confederation, where such allocations
may directly influence the staff and salary structures.
BWF staff must be able to manage the relationships with Continental Confederations in close collaboration with the Continental
Confederation staff and be the first line of effort to ensure compliance and accountability for the grants programmes. This becomes more
complex if the Continental Confederation staff member is also an elected official of the BWF Council.
The very close day to day collaboration between the BWF and Continental Confederations and the significant funding allocations from
BWF to Continental Confederations, makes this Constitutional amendment relevant.
It is however not seen as equally relevant that staff from a Member are excluded from being elected to BWF Council as the day to day
interactions with a single Member is not as frequent and does not in the same way involve as significant funding allocations that it is seen
to provide a risk to create conflict of interests situations or perceptions. The occasional and not very frequent conflict of interest situations
related to a Council member connections with a Member are handled according to existing guidelines for Council procedures.
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5.3

Approval of Amendments to the Constitution - Clause 31.1 / 31.2

To approve amendments to the Constitution to include a new Judicial Body – an Ethics Hearing Panel.

Amendments in red.
31.
JUDICIAL BODIES OF THE FEDERATION
		
31.1 The following bodies of the Federation have judicial powers in accordance with the Federation’s Statutes:
		

31.1.1
31.1.2
31.1.3
31.1.4
31.1.5

		
		
		

The General Meeting;
The Council;
The Ethics Hearing Panel and any other Disciplinary Committee / Panel appointed by Council;
The Doping Hearing Panel;
The Appeals Panel;

31.2 With the exception of the Doping Hearing Panel, the Ethics Hearing Panel and the Appeals Panel the bodies may delegate their
power. In all cases the procedural provisions of the Constitution shall be followed.
The judicial bodies of the Federation have the power to make decisions and impose penalties in their areas of duty set out in the
Statutes.

Rationale
This amendment establishes an Ethics Hearing Panel that will deal with cases concerning alleged breaches of the Code of Ethics and
includes cases related to the breaches of the Codes of Conduct for Candidates for Elections, Elected Officials and Bidding Organisations
for Major Events. It will deal with allegations of corruption as well as breaches under the Code of Conduct in Relation to Wagering, Betting
and Match Manipulation.
Like the Doping Hearing Panel, the Ethics Hearing Panel will be made up of a pool of external legal experts who can be selected for a three
person panel to hear a case in line with the BWF Judicial Procedures approved by Council in March 2017.
And like the Doping Hearing Panel, the Council will appoint the external experts who will be members of the Doping Hearing Panel.
5.4

Approval of Amendments to the Laws of Badminton

To approve amendments to the Laws of Badminton.
Amendments in red.
Part II–Section 1A –Laws of Badminton
17.5.2
		
		
		
		

in the opinion of the umpire, it is beyond reasonable doubt that a line
judge has clearly made a wrong call, the umpire shall overrule the
decision of the line judge; an Instant Review System is in operation,
the Referee system in operation shall decide on any line call
challenge using the system (Appendix 7).

Part II –Section 1B –Appendix 7 –Instant Review System
Current Wording:
3.1
		

A player/pair has two rights to challenge line calls during the duration of
each of the match.

Proposed Replacement Wording:
3.1
		
		

5.5

A player/pair may make an unlimited number of challenges until
there is a maximum of two failed challenges to line calls during the
duration of each game of the match.

Approval of Nomination for Honorary Life Vice President

To approve the Council nomination for Justian Suhandinata to become an Honorary Life Vice President of the BWF.
Further details are contained in Annexure E of this Order Paper.
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6.

PROPOSAL BY BADMINTON ASSOCIATION OF MALAYSIA
Badminton Association of Malaysia proposes to the members to implement the experimental service law as per regulation 9.1.6.2 in
the Laws of Badminton in all international BWF Sanctioned Tournaments, including Under 19 International Tournaments, but not other
tournaments for age groups below Under 19. Furthermore the following should apply:
1.
		
2.
3.
		
		

The fixed service height shall be 1.10 metres or another height BWF Council may consider suitable after experiments have been
conducted.
The experimental service law implemented must be amended, so regulation 9.1.7 in Laws of Badminton does not apply.
The experimental law should be implemented after due consideration by BWF Council and after experiments has been
conducted outside official international competition, but latest by 1 January 2018. The period for experimentation should run
until the proposal is put forward by BWF Council for adoption or rejected by BWF Council.

Rationale
The accurate enforcement of the present Law 9.1.6 is highly questionable as it is visually impossible for the Service Judge to see the
server’s bottom rib. Similarly it is highly questionable that the Service Judge can be certain that the shaft and the racket head of the
server’s racket at the instant of hitting the shuttle are pointing in a downward direction under the present Law 9.1.7.
The decisions of Service Judges to call “Fault” or not in many instances have been questioned by many players, officials and spectators.
Being an Olympic sport and in the era of modern technology, there should not be any grey area in the enforcement of the Laws of
Badminton.
A fixed height of 1.10 metres (or any height BWF Council may consider suitable after experiment) for service as compared to the net height
of 1.524 metres (at the centre of the court) should be sufficient to ensure that the flight of the shuttle will be moving upwards.
Therefore the already existing experimental service law in regulations 9.1.6.2 should be implemented for international tournaments and
the experiment system should be amended so Law 9.1.7 no longer applies as part of the experimental service law.
It is accepted that some testing is necessary to determine if 1.10 metres is the correct height for the experimental service law and BWF
Council is therefore asked to make this decision based on suitable out of competition experiments.
Furthermore it must also be carefully tested how the experimental service law will work for younger age groups and children with a low
body height. The experimental service law should therefore not be implemented as the general service law until all such aspects has been
tested and considered, and potentially a different service law for such younger age groups is implemented.
The experimental service law with a fixed service height should however make it easier for a service judge to decide to call a fault or not.
Tools can be provided such as a small metal bar being attached to the net posts at the height of 1.10 metres (or any height BWF Council
may consider suitable after experiment) and the Service Judge shall be required to position his/her eyes behind the metal bar to see in a
parallel line the server executing the service to determine a correct service.
With new technologies coming in there may also going forward be a possibility to implement an Instant Review System to help the service
judge to call the service correctly.
		
7.

SUBSCRIPTION
To consider Council’s proposal that the unit of subscription for the year 2018 should be set at US$200 per unit (unchanged).

8.

AUDITORS
Council proposes that the services of BDO Malaysia be maintained.

9.

COUNCIL ELECTION RESULTS

10.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

11.

NEXT MEETING
The next Annual General Meeting is proposed to be held in May 2018 in conjunction with the TOTAL BWF Thomas and Uber Cup Finals
2018.
The exact date will be announced to the membership, not later than 30 September 2017.

By order of the Council of the Federation.
Thomas Lund
Secretary General
31 March 2017
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